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Acknowledgement
of Country
Aboriginal people, through their rich culture, have
been connected to the land and sea, for tens of
thousands of years. Parks Victoria respectfully
acknowledges Aboriginal Traditional Owners,
their cultures and knowledge and their continuing
connection to and cultural obligations to care for
their Country.

Parks and waterways
Parks Victoria manages many sites such as piers,
waterways, ports, bays, historic buildings, trails,
urban parks, small conservation reserves, and large
national and state parks. For the sake of brevity,
these are collectively referred to in this document as
‘parks’, unless a specific type of site is stated.
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About Parks Victoria

Who we are

Our ministers

Parks Victoria was established as a statutory authority
in 1998 to manage Victoria’s diverse parks system.
We now manage 18 per cent of the State or 4.11
million hectares of public land in partnership with
Traditional Owners, government and non-government
organisations, park neighbours and the broader
community.

The responsible ministers for the reporting period were:

As specified by the Parks Victoria Act 1998, our
functions are:
•

to provide services to Victorians and its agencies
for the management of parks, reserves and other
land, under control of the State; and

•

 ith approval of our minister, to provide services
w
to the owner of any other land used for public
purposes, for the management of that land

In carrying out our functions, we always act in a way
that is environmentally sound.
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About Parks Victoria

•

from 1 July 2014 to 3 December 2014 the
Hon Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment
and Climate Change, the Hon David Hodgett MP,
Minister for Ports, and the Hon Peter Walsh MP,
Minister for Water; and

•

from 4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015, the
Hon Lisa Neville MP, Minister for Environment,
Climate Change and Water and the Hon Luke
Donnellan MP, Minister for Ports.

What we manage
The network of parks that we manage includes
national parks, marine parks and sanctuaries,
wilderness areas, state and metropolitan parks,
thousands of Aboriginal and post-European cultural
and heritage sites, and around 70 per cent of
Victoria’s coastline. Parks Victoria is also the Local
Port Manager for Port Phillip Bay, Western Port and
Port Campbell and the Waterways Manager for the
Yarra and Maribyrnong rivers.

Parks Victoria manages an expanding estate covering
more than 4.1 million hectares or about 18 per cent
of Victoria’s public land.
Parks network

Built assets

45

46

national parks

visitor centre
buildings

26 state parks

727 shelters

13 marine national parks

833 toilets

11 marine sanctuaries

506 viewing lookouts

3 wilderness parks

59 playgrounds

30 metropolitan parks

14,000 km of roads (approximately)

3 major ports (local port manager)

1,293 pedestrian and vehicular bridges

2 major rivers (waterways manager)

3,700km of walking tracks (approximately)

 0 other parks (including regional
6
and reservoir parks)

122 sporting facilities, e.g. golf courses, ovals
and wickets

more than 2,700 natural features
and conservation reserves

211 piers and jetties

more than 11,000 recorded Aboriginal places

110 water access points and
812 navigation aids.

more than 2,500 historic places

Visitation

over

98.5 million
visits
per year to
Victoria’s parks

including

37.8 million
to national parks

16 million
to major metropolitan parks

44.6 million
to piers, bays & waterways
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Shaping our Future

Parks Victoria is a world-class park service ensuring
healthy parks for healthy people.
Parks Victoria delivers enduring benefits to park users and the community through expert stewardship
of Victoria’s terrestrial and marine parks estate. As outlined in our long-term strategy, Shaping our Future,
Parks Victoria delivers these benefits by focussing our work across four strategic, integrated themes:

Connecting people
and parks

Providing benefits beyond
park boundaries

We will contribute to the improved health and
wellbeing of the community through a park
network that is cherished by the community.

We will contribute to the wellbeing of Victorians
beyond the boundaries of the parks we manage.

Enhancing organisational
excellence

Conserving Victoria’s
special places
We will do all we can to increase the resilience of
natural and cultural values in parks, in the face of
climate change and other stressors, whilst working
to maintain and restore the health of parks and the
special places within them.

We will create an interconnected, sustainable,
resilient organisation that anticipates and adapts
to economic, social and environmental changes.

Connecting people
and parks

Providing
benefits
beyond park
boundaries

En
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Healthy Parks Healthy People

Parks Victoria’s vision underpins our approach
to delivering real benefits for all Victorians.
Traditional owners have long understood the integral
link between nature and human health and wellbeing,
as expressed by the phrase ‘Care for Country and
Country cares for you’. Parks Victoria’s adoption of
Healthy Parks Healthy People reflects an ever-growing
body of research that confirms the time we spend
connecting with nature has a positive impact on our
health and wellbeing.

Our commitments
Supporting our vision and approach are six
commitments that define our target culture – one
that enables Parks Victoria to be a high-performing
organisation that is results-focused, flexible and
innovative. Our six commitments are to:
•

Put safety first

•

Provide excellent customer service

t he wellbeing of all societies depends
on healthy ecosystems;

•

Collaborate

•

Lead innovation

•

parks nurture healthy ecosystems;

•

Be accountable

•

c ontact with nature is essential for improving
emotional, physical and spiritual health and
wellbeing; and

•

Act with integrity

•

 arks are fundamental to economic growth
p
and to vibrant and healthy communities.

Four key principles support Parks Victoria’s Healthy
Parks Healthy People approach:
•

Through our expert management of Victoria’s parks
estate, we foster the connection community has
with Country and, in turn, foster community health,
wellbeing and development.

Our values
Parks Victoria staff subscribe to seven core values.
These values are:
•

Responsiveness

•

Integrity

•

Impartiality

•

Accountability

•

Respect

•

Leadership

•

Human rights

Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Chairman’s message

On behalf of the Parks Victoria Board, it gives
me great pleasure to present the 2014–15
Parks Victoria annual report.
Parks Victoria has once
again demonstrated that
it is a global leader in
park management.
In 2014–15, we
cemented the way
the world looks
at the connection
between nature and
Andrew Fairley
the achievement of
Board Chair
health outcomes. We
have known for a long time that our parks are not
managed in isolation. They are deeply embedded
in communities and contribute to the basic building
blocks for sustaining human life. Our vision gives
voice to this belief and the approach we adopt
to managing our organisation.
Partnering with the United States’ National Parks
Service to deliver the Healthy Parks Healthy People
stream at the IUCN World Parks Congress in
November 2014, Parks Victoria received further
international validation for the work we have done.
With more than 6,000 congress participants from
over 170 countries in attendance, Parks Victoria’s
Healthy Parks Healthy People approach was
championed on a global stage.
We are also working closely with our partners to
ensure our park system is accessible for all. Victorians
benefit from Parks Victoria’s management of our parks
and waterways in numerous ways. With visitation
numbers reaching more than 98.5 million people,
it is clear that the community values Victoria’s parks
as special places critical to their health and wellbeing;
to connect with nature; to learn and to share;
to foster cultural and spiritual connections and to
enjoy a diverse range of recreational opportunities.
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Chairman’s message

The flow of benefits which extend from a healthy
parks system is also highly significant. This year, our
work to quantify the role of Victoria’s park network
in maintaining and improving liveability and in
supporting Victoria’s economy has given us great
insight into the value that our parks system
contributes to all Victorians today and for
generations to come.
At Parks Victoria, we believe the future is one of
excellence, so we have changed how we operated
during 2014–15 to significantly improve the way we
deliver our services. We have undertaken significant
reforms within Parks Victoria to ensure we are best
positioned to deliver effective and efficient parks,
marine and waterways management. We have also
continued our critical work on securing Parks Victoria’s
financial future, to ensure we are appropriately
resourced to deliver our vision to Victorians
to be a world-class parks service.
The deployment of a new operating model and a new
structure in our regions, complemented by realignment
across our Corporate Services divisions, has brought
considerable transformation to our business. Our
reform program has also focused on establishing
a high-performance safety culture, to ensure that
our staff look after each other, as well as they
do the parks and visitors within their care.
The Parks Victoria Board is extremely excited by these
changes and the potential for Parks Victoria to deliver
enhanced benefits for all Victorians. Our dedicated,
skilled and diverse organisation, with its growing
Aboriginal participation, is at the heart of the value
Parks Victoria provides.

Chief Executive’s message

2014–15 has been a busy year for Parks Victoria,
delivering an outstanding program of work while
undergoing significant operational reform.
Parks Victoria is
collaborating in new
and exciting ways with
its partners and the
communities in and
around our parks. Across
the entire parks estate,
Parks Victoria’s programs
and projects delivered
Chris Rose
quality outcomes for the
Acting Chief Executive
Victorian community.
The team works hard
to realise our vision, and our achievements this year
provide great demonstration of Parks Victoria’s
strategic directions in action.
In May 2015, Parks Victoria completed Stage One
of the Grampians Peaks Trail, one of our many
important major works projects. The Grampians
Peaks Trail is one of four long-distance walks in
development, which aim to promote the iconic
landscapes of Victoria. Once complete, the 144km,
13-day/12-night long-distance trail will connect some
of the Grampian’s most spectacular peaks, providing
visitors with an immersive nature experience across
a diversity of trail options.
It is forecasted that the trail will provide a major
boost to regional tourism by attracting an additional
86,000 visitors to the region each year and deliver
an additional $6.4 million annually to Victoria’s
south-west regional economy by 2025. The regional
economic benefits of the trail have been recognised
by the Victorian and Federal Governments, which
have committed a further $19 million and $10
million respectively, allowing for construction of the
entire trail over the next four to five years.
While we connect more people to parks through
such projects, we continue to achieve outcomes in
improving the excellent environmental condition of
our parks network. New sightings of species this
year include the endangered Spotted-tail Quoll in the
Great Otway National Park and maturing Western

Blue Gropers in the Barwon Bluff Marine Sanctuary
– a great sign for the overall health of our parks and
testimony to Parks Victoria’s ongoing conservation
and invasive species control programs focused on
building resilient ecosystems.
Parks Victoria proudly acknowledges that our Healthy
Parks Healthy People approach echoes Traditional
Owners’ connection to Country. We work with, and
learn from Traditional Owners to better manage the
lands and waters in balance with natural processes
and cultural traditions. The release in May 2015 of
the Ngootyoong Gunditj Ngootyoong Mara South
West Management Plan is a new type of multi-park
management plan, covering more than 130 parks,
reserves and other natural areas, including the
cooperatively managed Mount Eccles (Budj Bim)
National Park. Developed in partnership with the
Gunditjmara Traditional Owners, Budj Bim Council
and the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning (DELWP), the plan reflects and celebrates
the knowledge and trust we are building through our
cooperative and joint management processes.
Our ‘business-as-usual’ operations benefit all
Victorians particularly across our commitment to
community safety beyond park boundaries. 2014–15
presented yet another busy fire season and recovery
effort, with staff attending an above average 1,148
bushfires and responding to significant flood events
in the You Yangs Regional Park and Snowy River
National Park.
These few examples of Parks Victoria’s 2014–15
program of work were achieved – as was the case
across our entire workforce – during a period where
we restructured the way we operate to improve
service delivery. That the whole Parks Victoria team
has been able to achieve such excellent results while
facing these pressures, demonstrates that we are
supporting each other in our drive for organisational
excellence and remain committed to a safe,
collaborative and customer-focussed culture.
I am proud to be a part of this team.
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Our achievements

The year in review
Connecting people
and parks

Conserving Victoria’s
special places

Page 12

Page 16

Strategic directions

Strategic directions

•

More people visiting parks more often

•

•

 ncourage deeper connections of people
E
to parks and their Country

F ocusing on the resilience of ecosystems,
ecological communities and species

•

 ase our action on Aboriginal knowledge,
B
contemporary science and risk

•

Respecting and restoring our heritage

2014–15 highlights
•	
Over 98.5 million visits to Victoria’s
park estate
•	Over 3.3 million visits to the Parks Victoria
website
•

Delivery of the River Red Gum Parks Visitor
Facility Improvements program, including
Australia’s first accessible canoe launch

•	
Victoria’s first stairclimber launched
at Buchan Caves supporting access for all
•	
213,347 volunteer hours contributed across
approximately 200 parks
•	
360,000 face-to-face education
or interpretation experiences delivered
to support lifelong connections between
children, nature and parks
•	
Healthy Parks Healthy People
stream delivered at the IUCN World Parks
Congress 2014 demonstrating Parks Victoria’s
leadership in driving innovative approaches
to park management
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Our achievements

2014–15 highlights
•	
Environmental watering of Hattah Lakes
to improve wetland and river systems delivered
•

Habitat condition for the threatened
Helmeted Honeyeater and Leadbeater’s
Possum improved

•	
Critical re-introduction area for the Eastern
Barred Bandicoot provided at Woodlands
Historic Park, in partnership with Conservation
Volunteers Victoria and Zoos Victoria
•	
New sightings of endangered species,
including the endangered Feathertail Glider,
Spotted Tail Quoll and Western Blue Gropers
•	
Two million hectares treated to manage
populations of invasive animals for habitat
protection
•	
Roll out of Ngootyoong Gunditj
Ngootyoong Mara multi-park management
plan in partnership with Gunditj Mirring
Aboriginal Corporation

Providing benefits beyond
park boundaries

Enhancing organisational
excellence

Page 21

Page 25

Strategic directions

Strategic directions

•

Assist in keeping Victorians safe

•

•

 row world-class nature-based tourism
G
opportunities in parks

S ecure stable, flexible and sustainable
revenue streams

•

 utcomes-focused workforce that is flexible
O
and reflects the communities it serves

•

Driving accountability and performance

•

 rovide digital experiences and information
P
solutions to improve productivity and make
it easier for people to connect with parks

•

•

 ark ecosystems services contribute
P
to productive, healthy and prosperous
Victorian communities
 boriginal communities benefit from
A
connection to Country

2014–15 highlights
•

 3,000 work days contributed to the safety
2
of Victorians via planned burning and mechanical
fuel treatment, totalling approximately $5.8 million
(based on the grade 3 Ranger position)

•

 raditional Owner settlement
T
agreements and joint management
partnerships progressed in respect to 16 parks
and reserves across Victoria, supporting Aboriginal
community wellbeing and the maintenance of
cultural traditions

2014–15 highlights
•

Transformational initiative to build a high
performance safety culture to significantly reduce
safety incidents commenced

•

 boriginal Staff Forum held on building
A
capacity in land and heritage management

•	
Operational training to improve capability
in areas such as compliance, firearms, first aid,
vehicle use, plant and equipment conducted for
708 staff

•	
88,000 bookings for camping and
accommodation in parks, representing more
than 170,000 overnight stays and totalling
$8.5 million gross revenue

•	
85 per cent of staff participated in workshops
to embed our target culture and commitments on
safety, customer service, innovation, collaboration,
integrity and accountability

•	
Walk Victoria’s Icons suite of nature-based
tourism products to support regional development
progressed, including $4.16 million of
enhancements to the Great Ocean Walk
and completion of Stage One of the
Grampians Peaks Trail

•

 nterprise architecture and governance
E
framework to support effective decision-making
regarding IT investment designed and introduced

Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Connecting people and parks

We will contribute to the improved health and wellbeing
of the community through a park network that
is cherished by the community.
More people visiting parks
more often

for piers and jetties since monitoring began. The
total represents a 45 per cent increase over the
2002–03 figure.

Parks Victoria continues to enhance the physical,
emotional and spiritual health of all Victorians by
creating more opportunities for people to get outside
and be active, providing world-class facilities that
encourage and enhance a diverse range of park
experiences, and maintaining those special spaces
that Victorians use to gather, share and build strong,
resilient communities.

Promoting Healthy Parks
Healthy People

Over 98.5 million visits to Victoria’s parks
Victoria’s parks reached more than 98.5 million
visits in 2014–15. The visits were across the entire
Parks Victoria estate and included:
•

37.8 million visits to national and state parks;

•

16 million visits to major metropolitan parks; and

•

44.6 million visits to piers, bays and waterways.

This continues the long-term trend in increasing
parks visitation, with an average annual growth
of 2.3 per cent for terrestrial parks, and 3.8 per cent

Parks Victoria encourages and enables visitation to
Victoria’s parks estate by providing insightful and
timely information, advice and bookings services.
In 2014–15, our website, www.parks.vic.gov.au,
received over 3.3 million visits, our Facebook page
received 33,446 likes, and our Information Centre
fielded over 100,000 phone calls to 13 1963 and
responded to 15,074 emails. We also promoted Parks
Victoria at 45 events across the state with Ranger
Roo attending four events for children.

Improving Melbourne’s liveability –
our metropolitan parks network
The green spaces that comprise Parks Victoria’s
network of metropolitan parks are an essential
element to Melbourne’s liveability.

IUCN World Parks
Congress 2014
Parks Victoria was one of the core organisations
involved in delivering seven days of programming
and events at the IUCN World Parks Congress 2014
in Sydney in November 2014. Parks Victoria, with
assistance from the US National Park Service, managed
36 sessions, more than 40 e-posters, and 16 events and
launches within the Improving Health and Wellbeing:
Healthy Parks Healthy People stream.
The Congress presented a unique opportunity to
demonstrate Parks Victoria’s leadership in driving
the Healthy Parks Healthy People approach to park
management, contributing to filling knowledge gaps,
influencing policy and improving the health of parks
and the wellbeing of people through innovative
approaches and partnerships.
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Connecting people and parks

The diversity of essential services provided by parks
in Melbourne is significant. For instance, Albert Park
hosts sporting clubs and events, provides walking,
running and fitness facilities around the lake, and
has playgrounds for children, barbeque and picnic
facilities. All of these are critical to the liveability of
surrounding communities. Yet Albert Park also hosts
the Formula 1 Grand Prix which is a beacon for tourists
and beamed into living rooms across the world.

Major improvements
to park experiences

All Melbourne’s parks contribute to support liveability
in their own way, with some further highlight
experiences including:

•

c ompletion of Stage One of the Grampians Peaks
Trail and upgrade of the Great Ocean Walk;

•

s ealing of the main drive at Werribee parks to
improve access to the Mansion and surrounds
including the Werribee Open Range Zoo;

•

r enewal of visitor facilities and addition of a new
boat ramp at the Gulf Day Visitor and Camping
Area in the Barmah National Park;

•

 pportunities to reflect on important historical
o
events such as the First Shot of World War 1
at Point Nepean;

c ompletion of the inner approach to Port
Arlington Pier;

•

s ignificant progress in the Mornington and
Rosebud pier projects; and

•

Men’s sheds;

•

•

camping on Country at Plenty Gorge; and

s trengthening works to improve the life
of St Kilda Pier by 10 years.

•

a destination for children to play in nature at the
Brimbank Playscape.

•

 tness and historic heritage opportunities
fi
at the Thousand Steps and Kokoda Memorial
in Ferntree Gully;

•

the Burmese Karen Community at Werribee Park;

•

 oating opportunities through boat ramps
b
in locations such as Patterson River;

•

We are constantly undertaking major works
in our parks to develop, maintain or improve
park experiences and ensure the safety of staff
and visitors.
In 2014–15, our major works program involved
36 projects including:

Improving visitor facilities at River Red Gum parks
The visitor experience at River Red Gum parks has been enhanced by increasing the
services available to visitors at some of the most popular sites along the Murray River.
The delivery of the River Red Gum Parks Visitor Facility Improvements program has
focused on providing an enhanced visitor experience, complementing the character
of the environment at the site, as well as meeting the needs of visitors.
At each site, infrastructure to encourage and enable access for people of all abilities
has been delivered. Examples of this include Australia’s first accessible canoe launch
at Kings Billabong Park near Mildura, and an ambulant toilet facility at Masters
Landing in Gunbower National Park.
Assets have also been constructed at eight River Murray Red Gum parks or reserves
including at Kings Billabong Park, Hattah-Kulkyne National Park, Gunbower
National Park, Barmah National Park and at Scott Beach in Cobram Regional Park.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Introducing parks to new Victorians
Parks Victoria continued to engage with new arrivals
to Victoria, introducing them and their families to
parks. The 2015 A Day at the Zoo event was one
of many community events where Parks Victoria
joined other organisations, such as Victoria Police,
in providing information to new Victorians and
culturally diverse park visitors. Just under 1,000 adult
students undertaking English as a Second Language
(ESL) attended the event with the support of AMES
and other migrant community organisations.

Providing access for all
Parks Victoria is upgrading equipment and information
so that Victoria’s parks and special places are more
accessible for people of all abilities and backgrounds.
In 2014–15 we delivered the Walk in the Park
program which provides escorted group walks and
camps for people who are blind or vision impaired;
expanded the availability of All-Terrain Wheelchairs
in parks; launched an electric stairclimber at Buchan
Caves; and partnered with Arts Access Victoria to
deliver the Nebula program, which aims to provide
opportunities for people with disabilities to access
parks and engage socially through participation
in art activities.

Planning the park experiences
of the future
Victoria’s spectacular landscapes need visionary plans
for the future to ensure all visitors are able to access
and enjoy these unique natural places.
During 2014–15 we progressed four major plans that
consider the unique opportunities and challenges
provided in each landscape – the Shipwreck Coast
Master Plan; the Grampians Peaks Trail Master Plan;
the Falls to Hotham Alpine Crossing Master Plan; and
the Albert Park Master Plan.
Central to our approach to developing major park
plans is to acknowledge that parks exist within
communities, and to achieve success, communities
need to be treated as partners throughout the
process.
There is no better example to this approach than the
Grampians Peaks Trail Master Plan, which through
partnering with Grampians Tourism, Regional
Development Victoria, Tourism Victoria and local
government was successful in securing $29 million
of implementation funding to complete the project
and transform tourism within the Grampians Region.

The Visitor Experiences Framework (VEF) in action
Parks Victoria has been working with ranger and camping project teams at Mount
Arapiles to identify visitor sites across the vast Mount Arapiles-Tooan State Park.
The local team has now identified 13 such sites under the new VEF system.
The new sites were confirmed in consultation with key stakeholders including the
Victoria State Emergency Service (SES) and the Emergency Services Telecommunications
Authority (ESTA), the agency responsible for dispatching emergency calls. In the past,
there has been confusion about the name and location of sites which particularly
made rescues of injured rock climbers at Mount Arapiles a challenge. New data from
the VEF is significantly improving clarity around the location of the park’s key visitor
areas and now includes links to all 60 of the key rock climbing spots at Mount Arapiles.
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Connecting people and parks

Visitor Experience Framework (VEF)
A VEF has been developed to assist Parks Victoria
deliver enriched visitor experiences, supported by
visitor-driven levels of service and an appropriate
asset base. The VEF is being integrated with other
planning activities, such as landscape management
plans and master plans, to provide the best guidance
to service delivery in the field. A number of park
teams have worked through VEF planning as part
of its piloting, testing and finalisation process, with
32 per cent, or 754 of our park sites validated. The
system will be ready for full launch in 2015–16.

Encourage deeper
connections of people
to parks and their Country
Strengthen lifetime commitments
to parks and their values through
interpretation and education
During 2014–15, Parks Victoria staff, as well as
licensed tour operators in parks, provided nearly
360,000 face-to-face education or interpretation
experiences in parks. Education and interpretation
experiences are powerful tools to strengthen the
connection of people of all ages to parks.

The provision of inspirational and educational
experiences for children in particular, builds the
foundations for a lifelong connection to parks.
In 2014–15, Parks Victoria hosted 14 Bush
Kindergartens, engaged and delighted young
children with Ranger Roo, operated our Junior
Ranger program online and across 20 parks,
and conducted a Kids Teaching Kids event
at Serendip Sanctuary.

Engaging partners and volunteers
Each year, friends, corporate and special interest
groups, individuals, educational institutions, and
partner organisations provide invaluable support
to Parks Victoria by dedicating their time to improve
parks and deliver visitor services.
Not only do our partners and volunteers make
a significant contribution to the improvement
of the parks estate, their efforts strengthen and
deepen individual and community connection
to parks.
In 2014–15, 213,347 volunteer hours were recorded
across approximately 200 parks. This translates
to nearly 29,000 volunteer days or the equivalent
of 127 full-time staff.

Naturewise Eco Escapes
Parks Victoria has continued to partner with
Conservation Volunteers Australia (CVA) to deliver
specialised ‘voluntourism’ products for Naturewise
Eco Escapes that contribute to environmental,
cultural and scientific park management outcomes.
At the end of 2014–15, eight internationally marketable
‘voluntourism’ products had been developed in key
regions across Victoria. Through these products, the
partnership delivered 22 project days, involving 80
‘voluntourists’, contributing a total of 131 visitor
days in parks and 917 volunteer hours.
Parks Victoria presented the joint products at the
Australian Tourism Exchange and was awarded
the 2014 Victorian Tourism Award for Best New
Tourism Development.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Conserving Victoria’s
special places

We will do all we can to increase the resilience of natural
and cultural values in parks, in the face of climate change
and other stressors, while working to maintain and restore
the health of parks and the special places within them.
How Parks Victoria conserves Victoria’s special places

Scope and
context

Share and learn

Action based
on Aboriginal
knowledge and
contemporary science

Analyse,
adapt, apply
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Conserving Victoria’s special places

Implement

Plan

Focusing on the resilience
of ecosystems, ecological
communities and species

Our work over many years has resulted in new
sightings of species in our parks in 2014–15
including:
•

e ndangered Squirrel Glider and Feathertail Glider
in the Grampians National Park;

Improved ecological processes

•

e ndangered Spotted Tail Quoll in the Great
Otway National Park; and

•

 aturing Western Blue Gropers in the Barwon
m
Bluff Marine Sanctuary.

Parks Victoria can improve ecological processes
through improving or restoring habitat conditions.
Ecological processes support the continued existence
of threatened and endangered species and provide
the foundations for delivering ecosystems services
to the community such as clean air and water.
In 2014–15, Parks Victoria undertook projects such
as the improved management of the Northern
Plains Grassy Ecosystems that resulted in the return
of threatened species; weed control programs to
improve the Alpine peat lands; and the watering
of the Hattah Lakes.

Protection of threatened species
Much of the work undertaken by Parks Victoria
is designed to improve, restore or minimise threats
from invasive weeds and pests to habitats or
ecosystems processes. These works in turn provide
major benefits for threatened species and communities.
In addition to these programs, Parks Victoria also
undertook over 40 projects in 2014–15 specifically
targeted to improve threatened species resilience.
The projects included restoring and protecting
habitat values for our state emblems, the Helmeted
Honeyeater and the Leadbeater’s Possum, and
partnering with Conservation Volunteers Victoria
and Zoos Victoria for the protection and breeding
of the Eastern Barred Bandicoot.

Fire Ecology
A landscape-scale strategic bushfire management
program has been rolled out across the state, which
includes planning for and measuring ecosystem
resilience in addition to prioritising community safety.
The ongoing development of policies, guidelines
and tools to maintain or improve the resilience of
ecosystems and their ability to deliver services such
as biodiversity, water, carbon storage and forest
products is being led by the multi-agency Ecological
Risk Assessment working group, for which Parks
Victoria is a primary provider of fire ecology and
land manager input.
Three strategic bushfire management plans were
published during 2014–15 for the East Central,
West Central and Barwon-Otway landscapes.
Ongoing monitoring programs such as “HawkEye”
examine and guide efforts to reduce the impacts
of fire regimes on biodiversity. Major research
projects undertaken include the Mallee fire and
biodiversity project and the Box-Ironbark landscape
mosaic burning project, with other research projects
progressed in the Alpine, Otway, Mallee and
Grampians parks for incorporation into bushfire
management planning.

Watering Hattah Lakes
The water pumped into Hattah Lakes, inundating around 6,100 hectares of lakes
and floodplains, improved the health of lake and floodplain vegetation. River Red
Gum and Black Box vegetation communities received water, some for the first time
in 20 years, while several species of native fish and waterbirds bred during the
event. The watering took the new water management structures close to their
full design capacity.
The Living Murray (TLM), the Commonwealth Environmental Water Holder and the
Victorian Environmental Water Holder provided water for this event.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Managing overabundant
native animals
Long-term programs to manage the impact of kangaroo
and Koala populations continued in several parks over
2014–15. These programs occur where a native animal
population has grown to an unsustainable level,
presenting a major threat to the surrounding habitat,
other plant and animal species or to the population
itself. Overabundant native animal programs are
developed with the support of key stakeholders,
including technical advisory committees.

Protecting habitats from invasive
weeds and animals
Managing invasive species is fundamental for the
protection of habitats and is a key delivery area for
Parks Victoria, with programs conducted in most
parks across the state.
This reporting year, over 30,000 hectares of invasive
weeds were treated and over two million hectares were
treated to manage populations of invasive animals.
Work as part of Parks Victoria’s ongoing landscapescale predator control programs included fox baiting
across 220,000 hectares in the Grampians National
Park to protect native species including the Longnosed Potoroo and Brush-tailed Rock-wallaby;
significant management of rabbits and their warrens
for the protection and recovery of sensitive Mallee
ecosystems; establishment of the new Otway Ark
fox control project to compliment the landscapescale weed control program across the Great Otway

National Park and wild horse control and monitoring
in the Alpine National Park as part of the Alps Intensive
Management program to protect alpine peatlands.

Base our action on
Aboriginal knowledge,
contemporary science
and risk
Parks Victoria’s approach to park management
is informed by and involves Traditional Owners,
contemporary science and risk management. We are
committed to ensuring that we use the best available
knowledge and data to restore, maintain and
increase the resilience of our parks and that our
work is undertaken collaboratively and transparently.

Joint management
Parks Victoria collaborates with Traditional Owners
so that we may understand and apply traditional land
management practices and embed these practices
as a foundation to managing a resilient parks network.
Parks Victoria also continues to support the operation
of Traditional Owner Land Management Boards that
have been established from State commitments in
agreements with Traditional Owners: the Gunaikurnai
Traditional Owner Land Management Board, the
Yorta Yorta Traditional Owner Land Management
Board and the Dhelkunya Dja Land Management
Board. The key function of these boards is to develop

Partnerships protecting the High Country
The Alps Intensive Management (AIM) program delivers improved park management
through expanded and new invasive species programs in the Alpine National Park.
Invasive species management strategies are developed and delivered to protect the
fragile alpine peatlands habitats. The Australian Brumby Management Association
support wild horse management directions, while a pilot program providing the first
ever deer control project in the Alpine National Park has commenced in partnership
with the Australian Deer Association and Sporting Shooters’ Association of Australia.
Our partnership approach improves the directions and long-term outcomes
from programs, and allows Parks Victoria to deliver specific high-priority and
complex projects.
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joint management plans for appointed lands in their
respective agreement areas. Parks Victoria has an
important role to play in working with these boards,
DELWP and Traditional Owner corporations during
the joint management planning phase and in
implementing the plans.
Parks Victoria also continues to support the
implementation of co-operative management
arrangements through the Budj Bim Council,
with the Yorta Yorta Nation Aboriginal Corporation
and with the Barengi Gadjin Land Council
Aboriginal Corporation.

Research programs
Research programs are an important part of Parks
Victoria’s environmental management. They provide
objective, reliable information to reduce knowledge
gaps and underpin sound decision-making across
park management.
Key examples of the critical research undertaken by
Parks Victoria in conjunction with many partners
including DELWP, academic institutions and community
groups in 2014–15, included restoration techniques

for degraded habitats such coastal woodland at
Wilsons Promontory National Park; assessment of risk
and control strategies for emerging environmental
weeds such as sallow wattle (e.g Grampians National
Park); fertility control for overabundant native species
such as Koala and Common Wombat; and marine
habitat mapping and restoration from marine
invasive species.

Monitoring programs
Monitoring provides information on the status of key
threats in parks, as well as the nature and magnitude
of trends in habitat condition and species diversity
through time. This information provides a strong
evidence base for evaluating and reporting on park
and landscape-scale objectives; identifies early
warning signs; and enables a strong evidence base
for adaptive management.
Projects in 2014–15 included monitoring key
environmental threats and their impact on park
ecosystems such as goat and rabbit populations in
the Mallee parks, and fox impacts in East Gippsland,
the Alps, South-west and Central Highlands and
Otways. Monitoring of habitat condition was also

Ngootyoong Gunditj Ngootyoong Mara
Planning for Healthy Country Healthy People
Ngootyoong Gunditj Ngootyoong Mara – meaning Healthy Country Healthy People
in the language of the Gunditjmara – is the name of a new type of multi-park
management plan developed using a unique partnership approach between Parks
Victoria, the Gunditjmara Traditional Owners, Budj Bim Council and DELWP.
The approved Ngootyoong Gunditj Ngootyoong Mara South West Management
Plan was released on 25 May 2014 by the Parliamentary Secretary for the
Environment, Anthony Carbines MP, and covers nine parks (the cooperatively
managed Mount Eccles (Budj Bim) National Park and Cobboboonee, Lower
Glenelg, and Mount Richmond National Parks, Cape Nelson, Dergholm and Mount
Napier State Parks, Discovery Bay Coastal Park and Discovery Bay Marine National
Park),several Indigenous Protected Areas and over 130 parks, reserves and other
areas not under the National Parks Act.
The plan offers practical and complementary solutions to park management
by addressing more than 140 areas, across different land tenures, including the
cooperatively managed Mount Eccles (Budj Bim) National Park by Gunditjmara and
Parks Victoria. Underpinned by science and contemporary planning processes, the
plan integrates Gunditjmara Traditional Owners’ knowledge into park management
and strengthens the capacity of the Traditional Owners, agencies and communities
to connect and work together in managing Country.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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undertaken in alpine peat lands (Alpine National
Park), and grasslands (Terrick Terrick National Park).
Remote camera monitoring of small mammal
populations was also undertaken in parks such
as the Great Otway and Wilsons Promontory
National Parks.

Respecting and restoring
our heritage
Cultural landscapes and built heritage sites are
vital to maintaining strong, cohesive Victorian
communities. They provide people with public spaces
to connect, share and celebrate our shared history.
Parks Victoria is dedicated to conserving these special
places for public enjoyment, now and into the future.

•

S carred Tree protection works in Plenty Gorge;
and

•

r epatriation of Aboriginal Ancestral remains
on parks and reserves.

Bringing heritage to life
Parks Victoria is entrusted with managing 2,500
historic heritage places. Major heritage places
include Werribee Mansion, Point Nepean Fort and
Quarantine Station, Mount Buffalo Chalet dwellings
in the Alps, along the Murray and in central Victoria,
cultural landscapes of the Castlemaine Diggings, and
coastal light stations and shipwrecks. Parks Victoria
is committed to managing, conserving and sharing
the stories of significant historic heritage.

Aboriginal heritage
In addition to conserving and applying the
knowledge and skills of Traditional Owners in
managing their traditional landscapes, parks contain
many significant cultural sites. Parks Victoria, in
conjunction with partners such as the Office of
Aboriginal Affairs Victoria (OAAV) and Traditional
Owner groups, undertakes conservation and
protection works which in 2014–15 included:
•

 boriginal rock art conservation in the Grampians
A
National Park and Black Range State Park;

•

North West Burials Conservation project;

First shot commemoration – Point Nepean
More than 4,000 visitors gathered at the parade ground at Point Nepean to mark
the centenary of the first shot fired at the start of World War One.
At 12.45pm on Tuesday 5 August 2014, a single shot was fired at Point Nepean
marking 100 years to the day since the warning shot was fired across the bow
of the German merchant vessel SS Pfalz to prevent the ship from escaping
Port Phillip.
Parks Victoria hosted around 100 VIPs as part of the commemorations, including
descendants of the soldier who fired the first shot.
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Providing benefits beyond
park boundaries

We will contribute to the wellbeing of Victorians beyond
the boundaries of the parks we manage.
Assist in keeping
Victorians safe
All Hazards, All Emergencies
Parks Victoria is a committed agency in the State’s
All Hazards, All Emergencies approach to emergency
management. This includes an annual contribution
of up to 25 per cent of our total organisational
resources to the planning, prevention and
suppression of fire.
Parks Victoria leads the Melbourne Fire and
Emergency Program on behalf of the Victorian
Government. This program aims to improve bushfire
preparedness in Melbourne’s urban areas.

Preventing bushfires
Parks Victoria works closely with the DELWP to prepare
strategic Bushfire Management Plans across seven
Bushfire Risk Landscapes in the State. These plans are
an important tool that informs public land managers
on the fuel management treatments required to
reduce bushfire risk and manage biodiversity values.

Another busy fire season
The fire response and recovery effort in 2014–15
was significant. By January 2015, over half of Parks
Victoria’s employees had responded to fires in a
short but intense fire season. As well as working on
the fire line, staff also supported the State Control
Centre and regional Incident Control Centres.
The area burnt by bushfire was 57,252 hectares. This
is significantly below average. However, the 1,148
bushfires our staff attended was above average.
A number of Parks Victoria staff also played pivotal
roles in the evacuation of Halls Gap due to the
bushfire threat in January 2015.

All parks are prepared
Safety is paramount to Parks Victoria and we take
all appropriate steps to ensure park visitors receive
up-to-date emergency warnings and advice. To
this end, all our parks update their emergency
management plans annually.

During the year, our staff completed about 23,000 days
of work including planned burning and mechanical
fuel treatment, contributing to the safety of Victorians,
as well as managing biodiversity values in parks
and reserves.

Parks Victoria fire experts
deployed to Canada
Eight Parks Victoria staff were deployed to British
Columbia in Canada to assist during their fire season
as a part of an 80-strong Australian contingent. The
deployment lasted six weeks from early August 2014.

Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Bushfire education

Walk Victoria’s Icons

Throughout 2014–15, Parks Victoria delivered
community engagement programs, in collaboration
with other fire and emergency agencies, aimed at
promoting fire safety behaviour and community
education.

Parks Victoria leads the development and promotion
of the Walk Victoria’s Icons portfolio of long-distance
walk products. Significant activities and works were
undertaken in 2014–15 for the Great Ocean Walk,
Grampians Peaks Trail and Falls to Hotham Alpine
Crossing.

Storm and flood recovery
A storm event in February 2015 resulted in
significant damage to the road and walking track
network in the You Yangs Regional Park and along
a short section of the Deddick Trail in the Snowy
River National Park. Parks Victoria has commenced
planning and implementation of recovery programs
to reinstate and repair assets and rehabilitate any
associated environmental impacts.

Grow world-class
nature-based tourism
opportunities in parks
Nature-based tourism makes a significant
contribution to Victoria’s tourism economy, ranking
highly as a driver for visitation to the State. Parks are
responsible for 16.9 million tourist nights in Victoria
annually, which contributes over $1 billion to local
economies and 13,793 FTE jobs.
To meet the needs of this growing market, Parks
Victoria works with local communities to develop
appropriate opportunities, while also ensuring that
the spectacular natural and cultural attractions are
appropriately protected and managed.

•

T he Great Ocean Walk had $4.16 million
of enhancements, which along with strong
marketing and promotion has resulted in the
walk recording its eleventh consecutive year
of growth, including a 14 per cent growth
in overnight stays.

•

T he Falls to Hotham Alpine Crossing is into
its second year of operation, receiving 251
bookings. The second stage of the master plan
continues to be developed, which will improve
the trail alignment and help to position this walk
as a world-class tourism experience.

•

T he Grampians Peaks Trail Master Plan was
launched at the end of May 2015 in conjunction
with the first stage of the walk, promoting a
3-day/2-night loop walk leaving from Halls Gap.
The first month received 58 bookings at the new
Bugiga hike-in campsite.

Camping and accommodation
More than 88,000 bookings for camping and
accommodation in parks were made during the year,
representing more than 170,000 overnight stays.
There has been a significant customer shift to online
bookings, with 65% of all bookings made online,
and a further 8% using mobile devices.
In April 2015, the Minister for Environment, Climate
Change and Water, the Hon Lisa Neville MP, announced
the removal of camping fees for all basic campsites
in parks. Fees have since been removed at over 500
basic camping sites over 70 campgrounds in 20 parks
throughout regional Victoria. Parks Victoria issued
refunds for all affected customers.
Parks Victoria has commenced a review of all
camping options to ensure the right balance
between affordable family holidays and funding
for facilities in parks.
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Park ecosystems services
contribute to productive,
healthy and prosperous
Victorian communities

The program encourages partnerships between
Parks Victoria (and other public land managers) and
private landowners to integrate actions that minimise
the impacts of weeds and pest animals, while
maintaining the range of benefits that each realises
from their land such as agricultural, environmental
or recreational benefits.

Valuing Victoria’s parks

In 2014–15, around 100 projects were delivered
including managing rabbits in the Wimmera and
Mallee, foxes in central and eastern Gippsland,
and pigs in Langi Ghiran and Mount Buangor State
Parks. Throughout Gippsland and the Goldfields,
blackberry and gorse treatment was delivered to
prevent the spread to private land or to remove
small infestations.

Victoria’s parks are widely recognised as central
to ensuring the State conserves its natural assets
and allowing people to connect with nature.
Less recognised is the critical role that the parks
network plays in maintaining and improving liveability
in our society and in supporting the economy. Many
of the services provided by Victoria’s parks provide
multiple benefits that can be considered public goods.
To further explore these ecosystem services, Parks
Victoria has developed a framework based on
world’s best practice to recognise, quantify and
value these services.
This framework will enable more informed strategic
and operational decision-making within Parks
Victoria, and more informed discussions with
government and stakeholders on the overall value
of the parks network.

Good Neighbour Program
Recognising that weeds and pest animals are a shared
problem, the Good Neighbour Program aims to reduce
their impacts between public and private land.

Events
Each year, Parks Victoria issues permits to facilitate
more than 1,500 community and commercial events
held in parks, supporting an estimated 2.3 million
participants and spectators, and enabling the flow
of economic benefits to the areas in which these
events are held.
Community events represent the largest proportion
of event participants and spectators. In August
2014, Parks Victoria released a new fee category and
eligibility criteria for community events to encourage
active community participation in parks. Since the
new community event permit fees were released,
an estimated 300 community event permits have
been issued across the parks estate.

The parks network plays a critical role in maintaining
and improving liveability in our society and in supporting
the economy.

Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Providing opportunities
for Aboriginal communities
to benefit from connection
to Country
Parks Victoria is dedicated to ensuring that park
management contributes to broader benefits for
Aboriginal communities across the state.
Through the implementation of Traditional Owner
settlement agreements and joint management
partnerships, Parks Victoria collaborates with
Traditional Owners on park management in ways
that contribute to Aboriginal community wellbeing,
the maintenance of cultural traditions and the
passing on of knowledge across generations.
In 2014–15, Traditional Owner settlement
agreements and joint management partnerships
have been progressed with:
•

•

 unaikurnai Traditional Owners and Gunaikurnai
G
Traditional Owner Land Management Board
in respect to nine parks and reserves in the
Gippsland area; and

•

 ja Dja Wurrung Traditional Owners and the
D
Delkunya Dja Land Management Board with
respect to six parks and reserves in central Victoria.

Work is continuing with DELWP’s Traditional Owner
Agreements Unit on the Joint Management
Implementation Project.
Parks Victoria is also working on cooperative
management partnerships with the Budj Bim Council,
and Gunditj Mirring over Mount Eccles (Budj Bim)
National Park, with Yorta Yorta over parks and
reserves in Yorta Yorta Country, and with Barenji
Gadgin Land Council over parks and reserves
in Wotjobaluk Country.

 orta Yorta Traditional Owners and the Yorta
Y
Yorta Traditional Owner Land Management
Board in Barmah National Park;

Parks Victoria is dedicated to ensuring that park
management contributes to broader benefits for
Aboriginal communities across the state.
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Enhancing organisational
excellence

We will create an interconnected, sustainable, resilient
organisation that anticipates and adapts to economic,
social and environmental changes.
Secure stable, flexible
and sustainable revenue
streams

Financial position – income statement

Overall financial performance
Parks Victoria achieved a net result from transactions
of $6.226 million deficit for the 30 June 2015 financial
year. This was in line with expectations and follows
a challenging financial period due to a decline in
funding for Parks Victoria’s core operations.
Throughout the 2014–15 financial year Parks Victoria
continued to drive operational improvements through
a restructure of its Regional Services operations.
We also placed significant emphasis on improving
our financial management capabilities through the
release of a new suite of financial management
policies and procedures and improved financial and
commercial reporting to both management and the
Parks Victoria Board.

For the 30 June 2015 financial year, Parks Victoria’s
total income from transactions reduced by $22.426
million from 2013–14. This was predominantly due
to a reduction in National and State Parks and Reserves
funding of $7.758 million and reduced funding
of over $10.513 million from the Department
of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and
Resources (DEDJTR) as Parks Victoria had closed
out delivery of several large scale ports and
waterways projects in the 2013–14 financial year.
Expenditure for the 2014–15 financial year was in line
with expectations and reduced by $10.740 million
from the previous year. This decrease was primarily
achieved through a reduction in contracts and
external services in our ports and waterways area,
and our continued focus on achieving cost efficiencies.

Five year financial summary
($’000)

2015

2014 (i)

2013 (i)

2012

2011

76,773

96,834

102,567

122,055

110,455

Total income from transactions

203,284

225,710

235,839

251,999

219,000

Total expenses from transactions

209,510

220,250

252,446

249,743

230,040

Net Result from transactions

(6,226)

5,460

(16,607)

2,256

(11,040)

Comprehensive result

(5,651)

6,169

(15,700)

(803)

(12,361)

9,833

4,369

(16,952)

12,367

9,468

1,919,219

1,926,991

1,916,797

1,851,560

1,830,609

53,251

56,420

70,389

149,585

138,799

Revenue from Government

Net cash flow from operating activities
Total assets
Total liabilities

(i)	During the financial year ended 30 June 2015, Parks Victoria revised its accounting treatment for a number of items and
as a result amendments were required to be made to the 2014 and 2013 prior period comparatives. 2012 and 2011
comparatives have not been restated in the above table.
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Financial position – balance sheet

Cash flows

Total assets at year end were $1.919 billion, the
majority of which represent land and associated
assets where Parks Victoria has been appointed
the Committee of Management. The major balance
sheet highlights include the impact of the re-valuation
of antiques at Williams Rickett Sanctuary of $2.426
million, and a decrease in financial assets due to
reducing operating cash flows arising from the
trading result and a reduction in debtors of
$8.313 million from the previous year.

Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year was $80.956 million, of which $47.154 million
related to the unspent component of specific purpose
grants Parks Victoria received to undertake various
projects. The remaining balance of $33.802 million
represents cash and cash equivalent required to meet
other short term current liabilities as they fall due.

Leases and licences
In 2014–15, Parks Victoria finalised 53 agreements,
including leases, licences and various consents, and
provided ongoing management support for more
than 500 lease and licence agreements across
the State.

Throughout the 2014–15 financial year Parks Victoria
continued to drive operational improvements through
a restructure of its Regional Services operations.

Healthy Choices initiative
Parks Victoria has been working with the Department of Health and Human Services
and Nutrition Australia to make healthy food choices the easier choice, and to help
to create a healthier workplace.
Healthy eating is an important part of a healthy workplace. Providing healthy food
choices was outlined as an action key objective in Shaping Our Future and shows
that we are champions of the Healthy Parks Healthy People approach.
Healthy Choices in Parks Victoria will help to support the health of staff, volunteers
and visitors by targeting the areas where foods and drinks are provided. These
areas include catering for staff and volunteers, events, fundraising and social clubs,
sponsorships and food and drink outlets on Parks Victoria managed land.
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Enhancing organisational excellence

Outcomes-focused
workforce that is
flexible and reflects the
communities it serves
Staff, volunteers and contractors are
safer and healthier
Parks Victoria’s success is determined by our people.
Therefore our highest priority is “to value the health,
safety and wellbeing of our staff, volunteers and
contractors”. Parks Victoria is committed to building
a Safety First culture and reduce the number of
safety incidents incurred by our people.

Key steps undertaken during the year have included:
•

a Safety First Summit/Taskforce held on 4 February
2015 to engage Parks Victoria leaders in developing
a safety vision, brand, commitment and plan;

•

all staff “Stopped for Safety” on 3 March 2015

•

c ommencement of Safety Leadership training for
more than 300 managers;

•

a n audit program focusing on due diligence
and compliance auditing with four major
audits completed;

•

incident investigation, learnings and risk
management improvement processes; and

•

c ontinuous improvement of the OH&S
management system.

Safety First – Zero Injuries
We commenced a transformational initiative to build
a high performance safety culture to significantly
reduce safety incidents and achieved a 14% reduction
in total reportable frequency rate (TRFR) during the
2014–2015 year.
The Safety First – Zero Injuries program has a number
of phases that will focus on developing culture and
capabilities for all our managers, supervisors and
employees to execute and sustain a high performance
safety culture.

Stop for Safety
Safety First Zero Injuries is Parks Victoria’s safety goal. It was launched on 3 March
2015 when staff participated in Stop for Safety sessions across the organisation.
Stop for Safety provided staff with the opportunity to ‘stop’ and review Parks
Victoria’s safety performance, focus on what needs to improve, look at key risks
in the business, and explore the behaviours required to control the risks.
Parks Victoria also launched four key safety commitments. These are:
•

take responsibility for safety;

•

stop think and plan;

•

talk about safety every day; and

•

call out unsafe behaviour

Through this process, we are aiming to change our way of thinking, and become
a high performing organisation with zero injuries. An immediate benefit was that
our safety performance during March improved and we had 25 continuous days
free of lost time injuries.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Online OH&S reporting system

Staff health and wellbeing

2014–15 was the first full year of operation for
Parks Victoria’s new online OH&S system. The system
encourages more timely and accurate reporting
of incidents, and is now being used to capture the
findings of work centre audits.

Parks Victoria has an active program that seeks to
monitor staff health and wellbeing, offer free access
to professional counselling and support services,
provide free annual influenza vaccinations, provide
active support following critical incidents, and
implement the flexible work practices as part
of the Parks Victoria Determination 2013.

The combination of the Safety First – Zero Injuries
initiative and the implementation of the new online
OH&S reporting system has resulted in safety
becoming much more “front of mind”. This has
resulted in a significant increase in the level of
incident reporting in 2014–15 over previous years.
Number of reported incidents
Year

2012–13

2013–14

2014–15

54

87

217

5.59

9.63

22.65

2012–13

2013–14

2014–15

28

28

27

16.6

26.58

24.9

Year

2012–13

2013–14

2014–15

Average cost

$30,062

$22,460

$35,126

Incidents
Rate per 100 FTEs

Number of ‘lost time’ standard claims
Year
Claims
Lost Time Injury
Frequency Rate

Average cost per claim
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High performing people
and high performing
culture
Learning and development
We maintained a strong focus on operational training
with 708 staff completing training in areas such as
compliance and enforcement, firearms, first aid,
information systems, and the safe use of vehicles,
plant and equipment.
E-learning continued to be a relevant means of
providing training to a geographically-spread
workforce. There were 650 e-learning completions
for the year, across induction and compliance
topics. Two new modules were added; Workplace
Behaviours and Recruitment and Selection.

Performance development system
Significant progress was made towards the final
design of the new Performance Development System.
More than 40 staff provided input into the development
process to ensure the system meets the needs of
staff. The system is on track to launch in 2015.

Merit, equity and diversity
Parks Victoria is committed to maintaining
a workplace that is free from harassment,
discrimination and bullying. These principles
are documented in the Victorian Government’s
merit and equity standards and embodied in the
Public Administration Act 2004. Parks Victoria
communicates and adheres to the principles
set out in the Act.
As an employer, Parks Victoria ensures that:
•

decisions are based on merit;

Culture change

•

staff are treated fairly and reasonably;

More than 85 per cent of staff participated in culture
workshops in July 2014. These workshops allowed
staff to explore the new commitments of safety,
customer service, collaboration, innovation, integrity
and accountability, and discuss our target culture.
A Culture Management Plan was launched to help
Parks Victoria achieve its target culture.

•

equal employment opportunity is provided; and

•

t here are reasonable avenues of redress against
unfair or unreasonable treatment.

Aboriginal employment and development
The Parks Victoria Aboriginal Staff Forum in Horsham in May 2015 brought
Aboriginal staff together to share experiences and build capacity in land and
heritage management. The forum provided an opportunity for staff to meet with
Parks Victoria’s executive to discuss innovative approaches to Traditional Owner
engagement and recognition and support for connection to Country.
Participants enjoyed the opportunity to network and hear about important projects
being delivered across the State, including the development of the Parks Victoria
Aboriginal Heritage Compliance Tool, a mobile application ready for roll-out
to staff in 2015–16. The Executive took feedback from the group on how Parks
Victoria can further improve the wellbeing, cultural safety and support for its
Aboriginal workforce.
Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15
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Workforce profile

Ongoing

Fixed term

Casual

Total employees

Employee
(headcount)

FTE

Employee
(headcount)

FTE

Employee
(headcount)

FTE

Employee
(headcount)

FTE

June 2015

939

887.0

61

58.9

24

12.0

1,024

957.9

June 2014

906

845.6

45

43.2

27

14.2

978

903

Fixed term
& casual

Total

Total

June 2014
Ongoing employees

June 2015
Fixed term
& casual

Ongoing employees

Headcount

FTE

FTE

Headcount

FTE

FTE

FTE

%

Male

632

619.9

29.1

638

631.9

42

673.9

70%

Female

274

225.7

28.3

301

255.1

28.9

284

30%

6

6.0

4.1

6

6.0

7.2

13.2

1.4%

25–34

107

101.6

29.2

125

118

34.6

152.6

15.9%

35–44

258

232.5

10.9

267

245.4

17.8

263.2

27.5%

45–54

272

257.8

8.3

272

261.9

4.1

266.0

27.8%

55–64

233

220.8

4.7

240

229.2

7.1

236.3

24.7%

Over 64

30

26.9

0.2

29

26.5

0.1

26.6

2.8%

Grade 1

1

1.0

1.2

1

1.0

2.9

3.9

0.4%

Grade 2.1

57

54.0

27.7

57

54.5

43.1

97.6

10.2%

Grade 2.2

124

113.1

1.0

110

100

1.0

100.9

10.5%

Grade 2.3

170

160.6

1.5

155

145.7

2.4

148.2

15.5%

Grade 3

116

110.0

4.0

97

91.5

2.3

93.8

9.8%

Grade 4

129

120.6

7.0

155

147.5

6.6

154.1

16.1%

Grade 5

88

77.0

8.0

104

93.9

7.2

101.1

10.6%

Grade 6

110

101.6

3.0

101

96.3

0.6

96.9

10.1%

Grade 7

43

40.9

1.0

84

81.7

2.7

84.4

8.8%

Grade 8

53

51.8

3.0

57

56.8

2.0

58.8

6.1%

Executives

15

15.0

0.0

18

18.0

0.0

18.0

1.9%

Gender

Age
Under 25

Classification
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Enhancing organisational excellence

Driving accountability
and performance
Our vision sets the aspiration to be world-class in all
that we do. We have set the organisation up to be
one that puts “Safety First” and provides excellent
customer service.
During 2014–15, we undertook major workforce
initiatives to create a new operating model that will
modernise park services for Victorians. Collaboration
and partnering with community, volunteers, agencies
and not for profit stakeholders will be embedded
as the way we do business. These initiatives have
included a restructure of our Regional Services
operations and realignment of corporate and
planning functions.
By implementing our new operating model, updating
policies and procedures, tracking performance
against audit outcomes, and commencing a review
of our delegations, we have made significant
progress in improving our accountability.

Program Management Office
The Program Management Office was established
to develop and improve the systems and processes
underpinning program and project delivery across
Parks Victoria. The focus over 2014–15 was aligning
Parks Victoria’s programs with our strategic direction,
Shaping Our Future, and balancing resources and
capacity in the Corporate and Business Plan.

Executive officers
There were a total of 18 Parks Victoria executive
officers at 30 June 2015. Of these, all were
classified as ‘ongoing’. 17 were employed with
a total remuneration over $100,000 and one was
employed with a total remuneration below $100,000.

Provide digital experiences
and information solutions
to improve productivity
and make it easier for
people to connect with
parks
2014–15 was a year of change and consolidation
in how we deliver business and information services.
We reinvested in skills and capability with the
commencement of a new Chief Information Officer
and created a new senior management team.
We undertook several foundational projects, including
a review of our enterprise architecture and governance
framework, so that we can improve the way we deliver
information to visitors and partners and inspire new
people to connect with our parks.
Other successful projects undertaken during the
year included:
•

r ationalisation of the IT program of work, which
reduced the number of projects undertaken from
102 to 85;

•

introduction of ‘ServiceNow’ to streamline
incoming service issues and improve
responsiveness and reporting;

•

r enegotiation of our mobile phone contract
and refresh of the mobile phone fleet; and

•

 pdating of several systems, including the
u
financial and HR systems, rostering and
project reporting.

Breakdown of executive officers by gender
Male

Female

No

No

EO-1

0

0

EO-2

1

2

Class

EO-3

8

7

Total

9

9
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Parks Victoria’s Chief Executive is appointed by the Parks Victoria Board, and is approved by the Minister
for Environment, Climate Change and Water. The Board reviews the performance of the Chief Executive
on an annual basis.
During the reporting period, Parks Victoria’s Chief Executive was Dr. Bill Jackson until 5 June 2015.
Chris Rose was Parks Victoria’s Acting Chief Executive between 6 and 30 June.

Parks Victoria Board
Andrew Fairley
Chairman

Audit Risk &
Compliance
Committee

Finance &
Commercial
Committee

Prof. Rob Wallis
Committee Chair

Andrew Grant
Committee Chair

Workplace Safety
& Human Resources
Committee

Aboriginal
Engagement
Committee

Natalie O’Brien
Committee Chair

Deborah Cheetham
Committee Chair

Chief Executive
Dr. Bill Jackson
(1 July 2014 – 5 June 2015)
Chris Rose
(Acting, 6 – 30 June 2015)

Office of the
Chief Executive
& Board Secretary

General Manager
Park Planning

General Manager
Regional Services

General Manager
Corporate Services

Kate Millar

Chris Rose
(1 July 2014 – 5 June 2015)

Michelle Crosby

Craig Stubbings
(Acting, 6 – 30 June 2015)

32

Our organisational structure

Chief Legal Counsel
Legal and Corporate
Governance Directorate
Margaret Gillespie

Director Business Affairs
and Innovation
Frances Horsley

Building a more resilient
organisation – restructured
and ready to deliver
Parks Victoria changed how it operates during 2014–15
to significantly improve the way the organisation
delivers services to the Victorian community.
Following an extensive consultation period, Parks
Victoria adopted a new operating model and a
new structure for its Regional Services operations.
The new structure was implemented at the end of
January 2015. These changes have created a more
efficient organisation with an increased customer
service focus, improved focus on engagement
with communities, and better fire and emergency
management capability.

As at 30 June 2015, the Board members were:
Andrew Fairley (Chairman)
Mr Andrew Fairley AM has had a distinguished
association with ecotourism, conservation, parks
and resort management over many years. He was a
Director of the world-renowned resort Turtle Island
in Fiji for over 20 years. He has been a Director of
the International Ecotourism Society (Washington
DC) and a Director of Ecotourism Australia. He is
currently a Director of Tourism Australia and Tourism
Victoria. Andrew practises as a specialist equity
lawyer with Hall and Wilcox. He is Chair of Equip, a
$7 billion industry super fund operating in the energy
and water sector. He chairs the Sir Andrew Fairley
Foundation and he is the Consul General for Finland
in Victoria.
Dr. Dennis Cavagna

Parks Victoria’s Board
The Parks Victoria Board has responsibility
for the governance of Parks Victoria. On the
recommendation of the Minister for Environment,
Climate Change and Water, Board members are
appointed by the Governor in Council for a period
not exceeding three years. Members are eligible for
reappointment. The Board operates in accordance
with the provisions of the Parks Victoria Act 1998.
The Board is responsible for directing and monitoring
the business of Parks Victoria and is accountable to
the Minister for its overall performance. It delegates
day-to-day responsibility for operations and
administration to the Chief Executive.
During the reporting period, one Board member,
Ms Pru Sanderson, resigned.

Dr. Dennis Cavagna has an extensive background in
business, accountancy and financial management.
He was the former Managing Director of South East
Water and is a member of the Queensland Urban
Utilities Board and its Strategic Asset Management
and Finance and Pricing Committees, and the
VicRoads Audit Committee.
Deborah Cheetham
Ms Deborah Cheetham AO is currently the
Associate Dean Indigenous Development at the
Victorian College of the Arts and a Music Faculty
of The University of Melbourne. She is also Artistic
Director of Short Black Opera Company Pty Ltd and
a freelance performer, director, producer, writer,
teacher and composer. Deborah has a strong
understanding of Indigenous issues, which she
contributes to the shared management model for
many national parks. She has significant community
links and community consultation experience.
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Andrew Grant
Mr Andrew Grant has an extensive background in
natural resource management and business. He is the
Managing Director of Tasman Environmental Markets
and is the Chairman of the Carbon Market Institute.
Andrew has executive and board experience with
the Royal Botanic Gardens, Earthwatch Australia,
the Cooperative Research Centre for Greenhouse
Accounting and the Banksia Environmental
Foundation. He has held several management
positions in Parks Victoria and was a former Chair
of the Port Phillip and Western Port Catchment
Management Authority.
Natalie O’Brien
Ms Natalie O’Brien has a background in senior
management in tourism, marketing and events,
and is currently the CEO of the Melbourne Food
and Wine Festival. She has previously held roles
in both state and local governments as well as
positions on advisory boards in government. As
well as being a Parks Victoria Board Member, she
is a Director of the People and Parks Foundation.
Professor Andrew Vizard
Professor Andrew Vizard is a Principal Fellow
and previously Associate Professor of Veterinary
Epidemiology at The University of Melbourne.
Professor Vizard is an experienced company director
and has served on the board of numerous companies,
statutory bodies, charitable foundations and scientific
organisations. He is currently the Chair of The Vizard
Foundation, Chair of the Research Committee of
The Hermon Slade Foundation, a board member
of Ridley Corporation Ltd, a Director of the People
and Parks Foundation, and a Trustee of the
Australian Wool Education.
Professor Robert Wallis
Professor Robert Wallis is a part-time Professor of
Research Development at Ballarat University. He has
a background in natural resource management,
sustainable development and environmental
education. Robert has held senior academic positions
including Pro Vice Chancellor (Rural and Regional)
and Head of School (Ecology and Environment)
at Deakin University. He has extensive board and
committee experience, and is currently serving as the
Deputy Chair and Director of the Wannon Region
34
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Water Corporation, Deputy Chair and Director
of Great South Coast Medicare Local, and Chair
of the Warrnambool City Council Audit and Risk
Committee. He is a fellow of the Australian Institute
of Company Directors.
Ross Passalaqua
Mr Ross Passalaqua is a Company Director and
business consultant with broad commercial,
operational and technical experience across multiple
sectors including the tourism, safety, services,
petrochemicals, transport and logistics industries in
Australia and overseas. Following an early career
in consulting engineering, Mr Passalaqua undertook
corporate roles involving safety and risk analysis,
sales and marketing, business development, and
senior operations and commercial management
with primarily the Shell Group of Companies. Mr
Passalaqua then developed tourism management
and development expertise as CEO at Falls Creek
Alpine Resort. Mr Passalaqua currently holds other
Board roles with South East Water Corporation, the
North East Victoria Tourism Board and with Disabled
Wintersport Australia. He also provides independent
safety consulting and coaching services through the
DuPont organisation.

Total meeting attendance in 2014–15
Mr Andrew Fairley

8/9

Dr. Dennis Cavagna

8/9

Ms Deborah Cheetham

5/9

Mr Andrew Grant

9/9

Ms Natalie O’Brien

8/9

Ms Pru Sanderson
(resigned effective 22 February 2015)

5/6

Prof. Andrew Vizard

9/9

Prof. Robert Wallis

9/9

Mr Ross Passalaqua

9/9

Board Committees
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
oversees and advises on matters of accountability
and internal controls affecting the operations of
Parks Victoria as required by the Standing Directions
of the Minister for Finance under the Financial
Management Act 1994. The role of the Committee
is to assist the Board in the effective discharge of its
responsibilities in overseeing the areas of statutory
reporting, internal controls, risk management
(including insurance and legal proceedings),
compliance and the internal and external audit
functions. The Committee, supported by Parks
Victoria’s senior managers, comprises Professor
Rob Wallis (Committee Chair), Andrew Fairley,
Dr. Dennis Cavagna, Ross Passalaqua and Carol
Pagnon (external, independent committee member).
The Committee met four times in 2014–15.

Total meeting attendance in 2014–15
Mr Andrew Fairley

3/4

Dr. Dennis Cavagna

4/4

Prof. Robert Wallis

4/4

Mr Ross Passalaqua

4/4

The Workplace Safety and Human Resources
Committee is the appointed remuneration
committee with responsibility for determining the
organisation’s policy and practice for executive
remuneration and packages under the Victorian
Public Sector Commission Policy. The Committee
reviews, monitors and makes recommendations
to the Board on the following issues:
•

workplace health and safety;

•

s etting of performance measures and review
of the performance of the Chief Executive;

•

c ompliance with executive remuneration
requirements; and

•

human resources policies.

The Committee, which is supported by Parks
Victoria senior managers, comprises Natalie O’Brien
(Committee Chair), Deborah Cheetham, Professor
Andrew Vizard, Ross Passalaqua and Andrew Grant.
The Committee met four times in 2014–15.

Total meeting attendance in 2014–15
Mr Andrew Grant

2/4

Prof. Andrew Vizard

4/4

Mr Ross Passalaqua

4/4

Ms Deborah Cheetham

2/4

Ms Natalie O’Brien

4/4

The Finance and Commercial Committee
reviews, monitors and makes recommendations on
performance against financial budgets and plans.
The Committee is also responsible for supporting
and enhancing the commercial competence and
cultural profile of Parks Victoria and making
recommendations on current and future commercial
activities in line with the strategic direction of the
organisation. During the reporting period, the
Committee consisted of Andrew Grant (Chair),
Andrew Fairley, Pru Sanderson and Dr. Dennis
Cavagna. The Committee met four times in 2014–15.

Total meeting attendance in 2014–15
Mr Andrew Fairley

3/4

Mr Andrew Grant

4/4

Dr. Dennis Cavagna

4/4

Prof. Robert Wallis
(guest)

1/4

Ms Pru Sanderson
(resigned effective 22 February 2015)

1/4
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The Parks Victoria Board established the Aboriginal
Engagement Committee to assist with the
recognition and promotion of the significance of
Aboriginal engagement and cultural heritage, and
the importance of knowledge sharing with the
community. The Committee reviews, monitors and
make recommendations to the Board on a suite
of organisational strategies from an Aboriginal
engagement perspective and monitors how well
these strategies are implemented. During the
reporting period, the Committee consisted of
Ms Deborah Cheetham (Chair), Professor Andrew
Vizard, Pru Sanderson and Professor Rob Wallis.
The Committee met three times in 2014–2015.

Total meeting attendance in 2014–15
Mr Andrew Fairley

1/3

Prof. Robert Wallis

3/3

Ms Pru Sanderson
(resigned effective 22 February 2015)

1/3

Prof. Andrew Vizard

3/3

Ms Deborah Cheetham

3/3
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Compliance and disclosures

Legislative framework
Under the Parks Victoria Act 1998, Parks Victoria
is responsible for providing services to the State
and its agencies for the management of parks,
reserves, other land under the control of the State,
and waterways (within the meaning of the Water
Industry Act 1994) for the purposes of conservation,
recreation, leisure, tourism or water transport. Parks
Victoria’s responsibilities also extend to recreational
boating in Port Phillip and Western Port as a local
port manager under the Port Management Act 1995
and as waterways manager under the Marine Safety
Act 2010.
With the approval of the Minister for Environment,
Climate Change and Water, Parks Victoria may
provide services for the management of land to the
owner of any other land used for public purposes.
The Parks Victoria Act 1998 requires Parks Victoria to
act in an environmentally sound manner in carrying
out its functions. Parks Victoria is appointed as
a committee of management of various reserves
pursuant to the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978.
Parks Victoria is the committee of management for
a range of reserves including Albert Park, Werribee
Park, Yarra Bend, several gardens in the Dandenong
Ranges, and piers and jetties in Port Phillip and
Western Port. It also manages:
•

a reas under the National Parks Act 1975 –
approximately 3.45 million hectares;

•

r eserved and unreserved Crown land including
conservation and other reserves, metropolitan
parks, regional parks and historic areas;

•

r ecreational and other activities on waterways
land in the metropolitan area as defined in the
Water Industry Act 1994; and

•

 number of other areas under leases or other
A
arrangements (including reservoir parks).

Parks Victoria’s responsibilities for the provision of
services to the State are set out in a Management
Services Agreement (MSA) between Parks
Victoria, the DELWP Secretary and the Minister for
Environment, Climate Change and Water. Parks
Victoria’s services are delivered within state policy
and contractual agreements, and in accordance with
statutory responsibilities and statutory delegations.
The MSA sets out the principles for the delivery
of park management services, lists the land to be
managed and sets out the key functions of Parks
Victoria and DELWP.
The current MSA includes a commitment to engage
strategically and work in partnership with all
networked organisations. DELWP is the designated
lead for fire on public land.

Changes to areas managed
Under the MSA, the Minister for Environment,
Climate Change and Water advises Parks Victoria of
any changes to the land managed by Parks Victoria.
On 3 July 2014, DELWP advised Parks Victoria of a
reduction in the assigned land that Parks Victoria
will manage from 4,105,800 hectares to 4,105,400
hectares (Version 19 of the Register of Land).
On 24 October 2014, an interim Register of Land
assignment was sent from DELWP to Parks Victoria,
assigning approximately 1,000 hectares of the
Western Grasslands to Parks Victoria. This increased
Parks Victoria’s managed land to approximately
4,106,400 hectares.
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Freedom of Information
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 allows the
public the right of access to information contained
in documents held by Parks Victoria. In the reporting
period, Parks Victoria received 26 requests for
documents and information under the Act.
Of the 26 requests:
•

thirteen were decided by Parks Victoria;

•

t hree were courtesy consultations from other
agencies;

•

two were referred to other agencies;

•

four are yet to be finalised;

•

 ne did not meet the requirement under the Act
o
and was not processed;

•

one was dealt with outside the FOI process; and

•

two lapsed.

Freedom of Information requests are made in
writing describing the documents requested and
including the payment of the $27.20 application
fee. Application forms and information about how
to make a request can be found on Parks Victoria’s
website at www.parks.vic.gov.au. Requests should
be sent to the Freedom of Information Officer, Parks
Victoria, Level 10, 535 Bourke Street, Melbourne 3000.

Protected disclosures

Improper or corrupt conduct involves substantial:
•

mismanagement of public resources; or

•

r isk to public health or safety or the environment;
or

•

corruption.

The conduct must be criminal in nature or a matter
for which an officer could be dismissed.
One can make a protected disclosure about
Parks Victoria or its board members, officers
or employees by contacting the Independent
Broad-Based Anti-Corruption Commission (IBAC)
on the contact details provided below.
Please note that Parks Victoria is not able to receive
protected disclosures.
Parks Victoria has established procedures for the
protection of persons from detrimental action in
reprisal for making a protected disclosure about
Parks Victoria or its employees. Once can access
Parks Victoria’s procedures on its website at
www.parks.vic.gov.au. For further information
contact the Chief Legal Counsel, Parks Victoria,
Level 10, 535 Bourke Street, Melbourne 3000.
Alternatively contact the Independent Broad-Based
Anti-Corruption Commission (IBAC) Victoria, Level 1,
North Tower, 459 Collins Street, Melbourne Victoria
3000 or via www.ibac.vic.gov.au
The following information is available on request,
subject to the Freedom of Information Act 1982:
•

a statement that declarations of pecuniary
interests have been duly completed by
all relevant officers;

•

 etails of shares held by a senior officer as
d
nominee, or held beneficially in a statutory
authority or subsidiary;

A protected disclosure is a complaint of corrupt or
improper conduct by a public officer or a public body.

•

 etails of publications produced by the agency
d
about itself, and how these can be obtained;

Parks Victoria is a “public body” for the purposes
of the PD Act.

•

 etails of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates
d
and levies charged by the agency;

•

 etails of any major external reviews carried out
d
on the agency;

•

 etails of major research and development
d
activities undertaken by the agency;

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (PD Act) enables
people to make disclosures about improper conduct
by public officers and public bodies. The PD Act
aims to ensure openness and accountability by
encouraging people to make disclosures and
protecting them when they do.
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•

 etails of overseas visits undertaken, including
d
a summary of the objectives and outcomes of
each visit;

•

 etails of major promotional, public relations and
d
marketing activities undertaken by the agency
to develop community awareness of the entity
and its services;

During the financial year ending 30 June 2015, Parks
Victoria completed two projects and continued one
project under VIPP. All contracts were in regional
Victoria, and the total value of these contracts was
$14.3 million.
There were no new projects that commenced in
2014–15 to which VIPP applied.

•

 etails of assessments and measures undertaken
d
to improve the occupational health and safety
of employees;

One project in progress in regional Victoria is valued
at $11.1 million. This contract, which started in
November 2013, includes:

•

a general statement on industrial relations within
the agency, and details of time lost through
industrial accidents and disputes;

•

a commitment to 82% local content;

•

retention of the equivalent of nine full-time jobs;

•

c reation of the equivalent of four full-time jobs;
and

•

 rovision of skills, including maintenance of
p
compliance tickets for operators for cranes,
coxwain, dogman, forklift and heavy truck
drivers; and

•

training of employees in level 2 First Aid.

•

•

a list of the agency’s major committees; the
purposes of each committee; and the extent
to which the purposes have been achieved; and
 etails of all consultancies and contractors
d
including: consultants or contractors engaged;
services provided; and expenditure committed
to for each engagement.

Building Act
All works associated with buildings are managed
in accordance with the Building Act 1993, including
obtaining all permits as required.

One completed project in regional Victoria was
valued at $1.6 million. This contract:
•

delivered 100% local content;

•

r etained the equivalent of eight full-time jobs;
and

•

 rovided skills benefits in the areas of hydraulic
p
piping, and repair/creation of dam infrastructure
that meets the Australian National Committee on
Large Dams (ANCOLD) Guidelines for Dam Safety.

Victorian industry
participation policy (VIPP)
Departments and public bodies are required to
comply with the Victorian Industry Participation Policy
Act 2003, which applies to all tenders over $3 million
in metropolitan Melbourne and $1 million in regional
Victoria.

The other completed project in regional Victoria was
valued at $1.63 million. This contract:
•

delivered 80% local content;

•

retained the equivalent of four full-time jobs;

•

 rovided the Victorian economy with skills
p
benefits, including maintenance of compliance
tickets for operators for cranes, coxswain,
dogman, forklift and heavy truck drivers; and

•

trained employees in level 2 First Aid.

In 2014–15, Parks Victoria was fully compliant with
this policy.
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National competition policy Government advertising
expenditure
Parks Victoria continues to implement and apply
competitive neutrality in its business undertakings.
It ensures fair competition between government
and private sector businesses and removes any
advantages or disadvantages that government
businesses may experience as a result of
government ownership.

Consultancy expenditure
Consultancies valued at $10,000
or greater
In 2014–15, there were nine consultancies where the
total fees payable to the consultants were $10,000
or greater. The total expenditure incurred during
2014–15 in relation to these consultancies was
$724,827 (excl GST).
Details of individual consultancies are outlined on
Parks Victoria’s website www.parks.vic.gov.au

Consultancies valued at less
than $10,000
There was one consultancy engaged for Legal
Services under $10,000.

Major contracts
Parks Victoria had one contract greater than $10 million
in 2014–15. This contract was entered into during
the 2013–14 financial year. Parks VIctoria expects
to complete this contract in August 2015.
This contract has been published
at www.contracts.vic.gov.au.
There were no new contracts greater than $10 million
in 2014–15.
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Parks Victoria did not have an advertising expenditure
worth $150,000 or greater (exclusive of GST) during
the reporting period.

Sponsorships
Parks Victoria introduced a new Sponsorship
Procedure in 2014–15 and, in line with the Victorian
Government Sponsorship Policy, it will report on
its activity each year. Below is a summary of the
2014–2015 sponsorship register.
•

 total of 31 sponsorship requests were received,
A
10 of the requests were considered and 21 were
deemed ineligible.

•

 f the 10 requests considered, three were
O
provided cash sponsorship totalling $21,450
(including one awards program and two
conferences) and three were provided in-kind
sponsorship to the value of $1,165 (including
two accommodation donations and one Ranger
Roo appearance). The remaining four requests
were considered but not approved.

The total dollar value of sponsorship provided for
2014–2015, excluding GST, was $22,615. Of the 21
ineligible requests for donations of goods or services,
six came from schools and kindergartens, 10 were
for events and five were for auctions/raffles.

Filming Approval Act 2014
In August 2014, the Victorian Parliament passed the
Filming Approval Act 2014 to make the state more
‘film friendly’ and increase Victoria’s competitiveness
as a production location. The Act applies to all
commercial filming on public land. Many of Victoria’s
parks are used as venues for major commercial
filming projects, which in turn, helps to drive
nature-based tourism. In recognition of the positive
economic impact this filming has on the local and
wider Victorian economy, Parks Victoria adopted new
cost-recovery fees for commercial filming permits
in March 2015.

Environmental
performance
Parks Victoria has switched its environmental
performance reporting from financial year to
calendar year due to the significant lag between
consumption and data availability (sometimes greater
than 3 months). By changing to calendar year
reporting, Parks Victoria can be confident that the
required data has been captured and reported.

Approximately 98% of Parks Victoria’s Scope 1 and
2 greenhouse gas emissions are currently captured.
Sources not included at present include emissions
from waste, air travel and some bulk fuel purchases.
Efforts to improve the accuracy of environmental
reporting are ongoing.

DataVic Access Policy
The DataVic Access Policy 2012 enables the sharing
of government data at no, or minimal, cost to users.
Parks Victoria continues to review its datasets to
determine suitability for submission to DataVic. In the
interim, various data sets have been made available
directly to special interest groups on an ad-hoc basis
and digital maps, available to the public, are geo
referenced and able to be interacted and referenced
accordingly. Other information has been supplied
to various departments, such as DELWP, as the data
owner or agency responsible for further distribution.

Statement of availability
of other information
In compliance with the requirements of the Standing
Directions of the Minister for Finance, details in respect
of the items listed below have been retained by Parks
Victoria and are available (in full) on request, subject
to the provisions of the Freedom of Information
Act 1982:

2013
calendar year

2014
calendar year

Electricity
(megawatts)

4422

4449

Water
(megalitres)

*236

152

•

 etails of publications produced by Parks Victoria
d
about itself, and how these can be obtained

10,285

10,237

•

 etails of any major external reviews carried out
d
on Parks Victoria

•

a statement on industrial relations within
Parks Victoria

•

 etails of major research and development
d
activities undertaken by Parks Victoria

•

 etails of major promotional, public relations and
d
marketing activities undertaken by Parks Victoria
to develop community awareness of the entity
and its services;

•

a statement of completion of declarations
of pecuniary interests by relevant officers;

Item

Greenhouse
gas emissions
(tonnes C02-e)

The above electricity and water consumption relates
to metered and billed supplies only.
Electricity consumed from renewable sources such as
solar power systems is not included at this time.
*The higher than expected water consumption
experienced in the 2013 calendar year is thought
to be associated with irrigation related operational
issues at Albert Park in that year.
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•

 etails of overseas visits undertaken by Board
d
members or senior executives; and

•

 etails of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates
d
and levies charged.

The information is available on request from the
Chief Legal Counsel
Parks Victoria, Level 10, 535 Bourke Street,
Melbourne 3000; phone 13 1963
or email info@parks.vic.gov.au.
Details in respect of the following items have been
included in Parks Victoria’s annual report, on the
pages indicated below:
•

a ssessments and measures undertaken to
improve the occupational health and safety
of employees (on page 27); and

•

a list of Parks Victoria’s major committees; the
purposes of each committee; and the extent
to which the purposes have been achieved
(on page 35).

The following information is not relevant
to Parks Victoria for the reasons set out below:
•

42

a declaration of shares held by senior officers.
Parks Victoria does not issue shares nor does
it hold shares in any joint venture or subsidiary.

Compliance and disclosures

Compliance with the Australian/New Zealand
Risk Management Standard
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Compliance with the Ministerial
Standing Direction 4.5.5.1

44
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Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Framework attestation
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Key performance indicators
Definition of year end result:
Target met



Target has been met or exceeded within agreed timeframes.

Target not met



Target has not been met – exceeds 5% variance.
Target has not been met – within 5% variance.

No result

Recorded as NM = No measure

2014–17 Interim Corporate and Business Plan
key performance indicators
Connecting people and parks
Outcome 1.1: People are active in parks, improving their physical, emotional
and social wellbeing

Performance indicator
Number of visits to Parks Victoria
managed estate

2013–14
target

2013–14
actual

2014–15
target

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

88–92
(million)

95.8
(million)

93–97
(million)

98.5
(million)



0%

30%

32%



Output 1.1.1: Diverse experiences available in parks
Percentage of sites with Visitor Experience
Framework data validated

New
measure

This target was revised in December 2014 from 80% to 30% due to changes in the implementation methodology.
754 sites or 32% of the 2,400 visitor sites have been pre-populated through desktop validation.

Number of Licensed Tour Operators
operating in parks

320
(number)

372
(number)

372
(number)

387
(number)



Number of visitors using education and/or
interpretation services

100,000
(number)

160,000
(number)

140,000
(number)

206,030
(number)
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Output 1.1.2: Park facilities and information are available and accessible
2013–14
target

2013–14
actual

2014–15
target

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

New
measure

No target

95%

99%



Percentage of park assets in average
to excellent condition

80%

84.9%

83%

87%



Percentage of bay assets in average
to excellent condition

65%

70%

70%

80%



2.5 million 2.7 million 3.0 million 3.3 million



Performance indicator
Percentage of priority assets maintained
in a serviceable condition

Number of visits to website

Output 1.1.3: Partnerships and volunteers engaged in parks

Number of volunteer hours

148,000
hours

200,000
221,000 – 230,000
hours
hours

213,347
hours
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Conserving Victoria’s special places
Outcome 2.1: Increased resilience of natural and cultural park values in the face
of climate change and other stressors

Performance indicator

2013–14
target

2013–14
actual

2014–15
target

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

Total area of estate managed by Parks Victoria

4,084
(hectares
‘000)

4,106
(hectares
‘000)

4,106
(hectares
‘000)

4,106
(hectares
‘000)



Output 2.1.1: Parks managed effectively through adaptive and evidence-based approach
Percentage of parks estate with approved
management plans less than 15 years old

17%

18%

40%

23%



The target included two planning projects that are still in progress. The plan for the Greater Alpine National Parks awaits finalisation
following its release for public comment, with completion subject to Government direction on a number of policy areas and
resolution of the status of the Alpine Advisory Committee. The plan for the River Red Gum Parks will be developed over 2015–16.

Percentage of priority parks with systematic
monitoring programs

60%

50%

40%

45%



Output 2.1.2: Heritage places and cultural values identified and protected
Percentage of parks that have Aboriginal
Cultural Heritage plans

New
measure

15%

40%

NM

Capacity issues hindered the measurement of this KPI. The appointment of Regional Aboriginal Heritage Coordinators will enable
the development of Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Plans, to commence early 2015–16.

Output 2.1.3: Impact of invasive and overabundant species are minimised
Number of hectares treated to minimise the
impact of pest plants, pest animals, and overabundant native animals and plants (including
meeting ecological fire and watering objectives)

1,200,000 1,200,000 1,100,000 1,683,814
hectares
hectares
hectares
hectares



Outcome 2.2: Traditional Owners participate in the management of Country
Output 2.2.1: Formal Traditional Owner management agreement and partnerships
Percentage of parks estate with an established
program of consultation and involvement with
Traditional Owners
48
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New
measure

34%

37%

37%



Providing benefits beyond park boundaries
Outcome 3.1: Victorian communities are safer
Output 3.1.1: Manage risks to the Victorian community posed by fire, flood and
other emergencies

Performance indicator
Percentage of total labour contributed
to fire management
Percentage of parks with current emergency
management plans

2013–14
target

2014–15
target

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

Up to 25% Up to 25% Up to 25%

23.8%



100%



100%

2013–14
actual

100%

100%

Outcome 3.2: Victorian communities are more prosperous
Output 3.2.1: Improvements in the health, prosperity and productivity
of Victorian communities
Number of hectares treated for invasive species
for agricultural benefit

New
measure

292,000
hectares

160,000
hectares

70,474
hectares



All Good Neighbour Program projects were delivered during 2014–15; however, program funds were only deployed to support
existing projects: Due to capacity and resource constraints this program was not expanded to include new project areas over 2014–15.
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Enhancing organisational excellence
Outcome 4.1: Staff, volunteers and contractors are safer and healthier
Output 4.1.1: Improved safety performance

Performance indicator

Reduction in the Total Reportable Frequency
Rate (TRFR) on previous year

2013–14
target

New
measure

2013–14
actual

2014–15
target

25%
45.36 reduction
cases (34.1 cases
/per 1 million
hours worked

/per 1 million
hours worked

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

39 cases
/per 1 million
hours worked

This performance indicator measures the total medical treatment, restricted work, lost time injury and fatality cases. The result
achieved reflects a reduction on the 2013–14 figure of 45.36 cases per million hours worked, but the year-end result was still
39 cases per million hours worked. Parks Victoria is working towards achievement of the established target and to reduce safety
incidents across the organisation. Wilson Consulting Group was engaged to reset and define the expectations and behaviours
required to achieve a sustainable safety culture at Parks Victoria during 2014–15. Their contract commenced in December 2014
and concludes in December 2016.

Outcome 4.2: Parks Victoria continues to build a more resilient organisation
Output 4.2.1: Build a strong and secure revenue foundation
Gross revenue from user fees, charges
and commercial operations

$12.9
Million

$13.4
Million

$15.7
Million

$17.9
Million



Gross revenue from leases and licenses

$7.5
Million

$8.0
Million

$8.3
Million

$8.3
Million
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Output 4.2.2: Improved cost controls and management
2013–14
target

2013–14
actual

2014–15
target

2014–15
actual

Year end
result

Working capital ratio

New
measure

1.13:1

1.06:1

1.61:1



Total revenue in addition to general
appropriations

New
measure

$39.3
million

$33.6
million

$40.3
million



100%

44%

100%

58%



Performance indicator

Percentage of audit actions addressed
within agreed timeframes

A new framework has been implemented to track management audit actions and ensure all actions have been validated by
independent auditors. While the new IT system has increased the number of actions completed by management (95 out of the 122
due or 78%), only 71 (out of 122 actions) or 58% have been independently verified.

Output 4.2.3: A diverse and capable workforce
Percentage of Aboriginal employees employed
by Parks Victoria

7%

5%

7%

4.9%

Parks Victoria has been unable to undertake external recruitment in recent years due to the ongoing reform and restructure
program. With the restructure now delivered, opportunities will be made available to recruit Aboriginal employees where
appropriate.
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Appendix 1

Disclosure statement
Parks Victoria’s 2014–15 Annual Report is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation.
This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of Parks Victoria’s compliance with statutory
disclosure requirements.
Legislation

Requirement

Page(s)

Report of operations
Charter and purpose
FRD 22F

Manner of establishment and the relevant Ministers

FRD 22F

Purpose, functions, powers and duties

FRD 22F

Initiatives and key achievements

FRD 22F

Nature and range of services provided

4
4
10–11
5

Management and structure
FRD 22F

Organisational structure

32

Financial and other information
FRD 8C, SD 4.2(k)

Performance against output performance measures

46

FRD 10

Disclosure index

52

FRD 12A

Disclosure of major contracts

40

FRD 15B

Executive officer disclosures

31

FRD 22F

Employment and conduct principles

29

FRD 22F

Occupational health and safety policy

27

FRD 22F

Summary of the financial results for the year

25

FRD 22F

Significant changes in financial position during the year

26

FRD 22F

Major changes or factors affecting performance

33

FRD 22F

Subsequent events

FRD 22F

Application and operation of Freedom of Information Act 1982

38

FRD 22F

Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of Building Act 1993

39

FRD 22F

Statement on National Competition Policy

40

FRD 22F

Application and operation of the Protected Disclosure 2012

38

FRD 22F

Details of consultancies over $10,000

40

FRD 22F

Details of consultancies under $10,000

FRD 22F

Statement of availability of other information

FRD 24C

Reporting of office based environmental impacts

41

FRD 25B

Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures

39

FRD 29A

Workforce Data disclosures

30

SD 4.5.5

Risk management compliance attestation

43–44

SD 4.2(g)

Specific information requirements

12–31

SD 4.2(j)

Sign off requirements

52

Appendix 1

105

40
41–42

8

Legislation

Requirement

Page(s)

Financial Report
Financial statements required under Part 7 of the FMA
SD4.2(a)

Statement of changes in equity

57

SD4.2(b)

Operating statement

55

SD4.2(b)

Balance sheet

26,56

SD4.2(b)

Cash flow statement

26,58

Other requirements under Standing Directions 4.2
SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Australian accounting standards and other authoritative pronouncements

60

SD4.2(c)

Compliance with Ministerial Directions

60

SD4.2(d)

Rounding of amounts

SD4.2(c)

Accountable officer’s declaration

73
108

Other disclosures as required by FRDs in notes to the financial statements
FRD 11A

Disclosure of Ex gratia Expenses

FRD 21B

Disclosures of Responsible Persons, Executive Officers and other Personnel
(Contractors with Significant Management Responsibilities) in the Financial Report

105

FRD 102

Inventories

FRD 103E

Non Financial Physical Assets

FRD 104

Foreign Currency

FRD 106

Impairment of Assets

67

FRD 109

Intangible Assets

90

FRD 107A

Investment Properties

N/A

FRD 110

Cash Flow Statements

93

FRD 112D

Defined Benefit Superannuation Obligations

98–100
80
81–89
104

95–97

FRD 113

Investments in Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates

100

FRD 114A

Financial Instruments
– General Government Entities and Public Non Financial Corporations

101–104

FRD 119A

Transfers through Contributed Capital

92

Legislation
Freedom of Information Act 1982

38

Building Act 1993

39

Protected Disclosure Act 2001

38

Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

39

Financial Management Act 1994

108
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Comprehensive Operating Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes

2015
$’000

2014 (i)
$’000

Continuing operations
Income from transactions
Parks and reserves trust funding

3

84,323

86,965

Government funding

4

76,773

96,834

Interest

5

3,279

3,460

Fair value of assets received free of charge

6

262

668

Insurance claims

7

2,269

3,734

Other income

8

36,378

34,049

203,284

225,710

Total income from transactions
Expenses from transactions
9

106,165

105,834

Depreciation and amortisation

Employee benefits expenses

10

12,290

11,829

Contracts and external services

11

67,952

77,835

Other operating expenses

12

Total expenses from transactions
Net result from transactions (net operating balance)

23,103

24,752

209,510

220,250

(6,226)

5,460

Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

13(a)

(399)

(13)

Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments

13(b)

486

(17)

Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

13(c)

(1,658)

(159)

Total other economic flows included in net result

(1,571)

(189)

Net result

(7,797)

5,271

13(d)

(280)

898

24

2,426

–

Other economic flows – other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
Revaluation of superannuation defined benefit plans
Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus
Total other economic flows – other comprehensive income
Comprehensive result

2,146

898

(5,651)

6,169

The above Comprehensive Operating Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
(i) Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2015

Notes

2015
$’000

2014 (i)
$’000

1 July 2013 (i)
$’000

Cash and deposits

14

25,956

84,731

87,340

Receivables

15

7,969

16,282

10,921

Investments and other financial assets

16

Assets
Financial assets

Total financial assets

55,000

–

–

88,925

101,013

98,261

Non-financial assets
Inventories

17

180

193

175

Property, plant and equipment

18

1,825,221

1,820,501

1,816,471

Intangible assets

19

3,978

4,073

4,824

Superannuation defined benefits asset

30

135

798

–

Other non-financial assets

20

780

413

20

Total non-financial assets

1,830,294

1,825,978

1,821,490

Total assets

1,919,219

1,926,991

1,919,751

Liabilities
Trade and other payables

21

17,598

21,258

22,278

Provisions

22

35,653

33,562

34,073

Deferred income

23

–

1,600

–

Superannuation defined benefits liability

30

–

–

2,939

53,251

56,420

59,290

1,865,968

1,870,571

1,860,461

92,300

100,377

93,858

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Physical asset revaluation surplus

24

1,135,679

1,133,292

1,133,642

Contributed capital

25

637,989

636,902

632,961

1,865,968

1,870,571

1,860,461

Total equity

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
(i) Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes
Balance at 1 July 2013
Prior period adjustment

39

Restated total equity at the beginning
of the financial year
Comprehensive result
Transfer to accumulated surplus

24

Accumulated
Surplus /
(Deficit)
$’000

Contributed
Capital
$’000

Total
$’000

1,133,642

96,510

616,256

1,846,408

–

(2,652)

16,705

14,053

1,133,642

93,858

632,961

1,860,461

–

6,169

–

6,169

(350)

350

–

–

Physical Asset
Revaluation
Surplus
$’000

–

–

3,941

3,941

Balance at 30 June 2014

1,133,292

100,377

636,902

1,870,571

Balance at 1 July 2014

1,133,292

100,377

636,902

1,870,571

–

(8,077)

–

(8,077)

Contributed capital

Comprehensive result
Other comprehensive income
Contributed capital
Balance at 30 June 2015

25

2,387

–

–

2,387

–

–

1,087

1,087

1,135,679

92,300

637,989

1,865,968

The statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2015

Notes

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Cash Flows from operating activities
Receipts
Receipts from parks charges

84,326

81,940

Receipts from government for operations

97,814

111,774

Receipts from government for Base Funding Review
Receipts from customers/other sources
Interest received
Receipts relating to Goods and Services Tax
Total receipts

6,419

6,067

32,080

27,162

3,202

3,473

18,732

18,698

242,573

249,114

Payments
Payments to suppliers and employees

(203,510)

(218,956)

Payments to government for revenue collected from national parks

(10,241)

(7,394)

Payments relating to Goods and Services Tax

(18,989)

(18,395)

(232,740)

(244,745)

9,833

4,369

Total payments
Net cash inflow from operating activities

26(c)

Cash Flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment

(15,843)

(9,855)

Net cash (outflow) from investing activities

(15,843)

(9,855)

2,235

–

Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts from government – contributed capital
Advances from government – Greener government buildings program

–

2,877

2,235

2,877

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(3,775)

(2,609)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

84,731

87,340

26(a)

80,956

84,731

36

47,154

63,005

Non-committed cash (cash reserved for short term liabilities)

33,802

21,726

Total funds

80,956

84,731

Net cash inflow from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Consisting of:
Committed cash and investments

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

1 Background
a) Reporting entity
Parks Victoria is a not-for-profit individual reporting entity. Parks Victoria was formed as a public
authority on 3 July 1998 under the Parks Victoria Act 1998. The Parks Victoria Act 1998 was given
Royal Assent on 26 May 1998 and was proclaimed on 3 July 1998.
The principal address is:
Level 10/ 535 Bourke Street, Melbourne, VIC 3000

b) Objective and funding
The objective of Parks Victoria is to provide an outstanding park and waterway system, protected and
enhanced, for people, forever.
Parks Victoria receives the majority of its funding from the Victorian Government for the management
of Victoria’s National/State Parks and Reserves and from the Parks and Reserves Trust for the
management of metropolitan parks and waterways. The Trust is funded by a Parks charge levied on
properties within the Melbourne metropolitan area. Parks Victoria receives approximately 59 % (59%
2013–14) of Trust funds annually.
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial
Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards, including Interpretations
(AASs). AASs include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a) General
Statement of compliance
The financial statements as at 30 June 2015 comply with the relevant Financial Reporting Directions
(FRDs) issued by the Department of Treasury and Finance and relevant Standing Directions (SD)
authorised by the Minister for Finance. On 16 April 2015, Parks Victoria transferred its operating funds
from Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ) to Treasury Corporation of Victoria
to achieve compliance with Standing Direction 4.5.6 Treasury Risk Management.
Under Australian Accounting Standards (AASs), there are requirements that apply specifically to not-for-profit
entities. Parks Victoria has analysed its purpose, objectives, and operating philosophy and determined
that it does not have profit generation as a prime objective. Where applicable, the AASs that relate
to not-for-profit entities have been applied.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Parks Victoria on 18 August 2015.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015
b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby
assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency
of Parks Victoria.
In the application of AASs, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of (AASs) that have significant
effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:
• d
 epreciation expenses for property, plant and equipment, refer to note 2(o) – Depreciation
and amortisation,
• fair value estimation, refer to note 2 (f) (ii) Property, plant and equipment
• a ctuarial assumptions for defined benefit superannuation gains and losses,
refer to note 2(i)(ii).vi.ii Superannuation.
• provisions related to employee benefits refer to note, 2(i)(ii)Employee benefits.
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention
except for:
• n
 on-current physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a re-valued amount
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair value;
• t he fair value of an asset other than land, plant and equipment, antiques and work in progress
is based on its depreciated replacement cost;
• Defined benefit superannuation plan assets and obligations.
Historical cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial
information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the
underlying transactions or other events is reported.
Consistent with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, Parks Victoria determines the policies and procedures
for both recurring fair value measurements such as property, plant and equipment, financial instruments,
and for non recurring fair value measurements such as non financial physical assets held for sale,
in accordance with the requirements of AASB 13 and the relevant Financial Reporting Directions.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015
b) Basis of accounting preparation and measurement (continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
• L evel 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
• L evel 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Parks Victoria has determined classes of assets on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.
In addition, Parks Victoria determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is the Department’s independent valuation agency.
Parks Victoria, in conjunction with VGV, monitors changes in the fair value of each asset and liability
through relevant data sources to determine whether revaluation is required.
Consistent with the accounting requirement, Parks Victoria reviews its agreements with other entities
to determine the nature of its arrangements. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. Under this method, where applicable,
Parks Victoria’s share of the profits or losses of associates is recognised in net result as other economic
flows and its share of movements in reserves is recognised in reserves (non-owner equity) in both the
statement of comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2015 and the comparative information presented for the year ended 30 June 2014.

c)

Asset recognition and measurement
Parks Victoria only recognises assets on land it controls as the committee of management. Parks Victoria
also manages other assets on behalf of the Crown. Those assets and any new assets constructed by Parks
Victoria on behalf of the Crown are recognised in the asset register of the Department of Environment,
Land, Water and Planning.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015
d) Scope and presentation of financial statements
(i) Comprehensive operating statement
The comprehensive operating statement comprises three components, being ‘net result from
transactions’ (or termed as ‘net operating balance’), ‘other economic flows included in net result’,
as well as ‘other economic flows – other comprehensive income’. The sum of the former two, together
with the net result from discontinued operations, represents the net result.
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs. This classification
is consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed under AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements.

(ii) Balance sheet
Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial assets and
non-financial assets.
Current and non-current assets and liabilities (those expected to be recovered or settled beyond 12 months)
are disclosed in the notes, where relevant.

(iii) Statement of changes in equity
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliation of each non-owner and owner equity opening
balance at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period.
It also shows separately changes due to amounts recognised in the ‘Comprehensive result’ and amounts
recognised in ‘Other economic flows – Other non-owner changes in equity’ related to transactions with
owner in its capacity as owner.

(iv) Cash flow statement
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating activities, investing
activities or financing activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107
Statement of cash flows.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015
(e) Financial assets
(i) Cash and deposits
Cash and deposits recognised on the balance sheet comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits
at call and those highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of three months or less), which are
held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, and
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of the Cash Flow Statement, cash assets include cash on hand and highly liquid
investments with short periods to maturity that are readily convertible to cash on hand at Parks Victoria’s
option and are subject to insignificant risk of changes values, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

(ii) Receivables
Receivables consist of:
• s tatutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from the Victorian Government
and GST input tax credits recoverable; and
• c ontractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services, and accrued
investment income.
Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments. Statutory receivables are not
classified as financial instruments.
Receivables are recorded initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less impairment.
Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired,
lost or given up are recognised as a receivable when the receipt of the reimbursement becomes
“virtually certain.”
Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be
uncollectible are written off. A provision for doubtful debts is established when there is objective
evidence that Parks Victoria will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement. Bad debts are
written off in the period in which they are recognised.
The average credit period on sales of goods or provision of services is 30 days.

(iii) Other financial assets
Other financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an
investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the time frame
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Parks Victoria classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the
purpose for which the assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its other
financial assets at initial recognition.
Parks Victoria assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired.
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f)

Non-financial assets
(i) Inventories
Inventories comprise stores and materials and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to inventory on hand at balance date on a first in, first out basis. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred
in marketing and selling distribution.

(ii) Property, plant and equipment
All non-current physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost
is its fair value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a machinery of government change
are transferred at their carrying amount. More details about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of non-financial physical assets are discussed under note 18 Property, plant
and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment represent non-current assets used by Parks Victoria, comprising:
• Crown land, land and land improvements.
• Buildings and building improvements.
• Piers, jetties and river improvements.
• Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles.
• Antiques.
• Works in progress.
Items with a cost or value of $5,000 (2014: $5,000) or more, and a useful life of more than one year are
recognised as an asset. All other assets acquired are expensed.
Non-current physical assets such as national parks, other Crown land, and heritage assets are measured
at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any
legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made
in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation
to the asset are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that the restrictions will no longer apply.
Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their
highest and best use.
The fair value of cultural assets and collections, heritage assets and other non-current physical assets that
Parks Victoria intends to preserve because of their unique historical, cultural or environmental attributes,
is measured at the replacement cost of the asset less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation
calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits
of the asset and any accumulated impairment. Land under declared roads acquired prior to 1 July 2008
is measured at fair value. Land under declared roads acquired on or after 1 July 2008 is measured initially
at cost of acquisition and subsequently at fair value. The fair value methodology applied by the ValuerGeneral Victoria is based on discounted site values for relevant municipal areas applied to land area
under the arterial road network, including related reservations.
The fair value of infrastructure systems and plant, equipment and vehicles, is normally determined
by reference to the asset’s depreciated replacement cost.
The cost of constructed non-financial physical assets includes the cost of all materials used in construction,
direct labour on the project, and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads. For accounting
policy on impairment of non-financial assets, refer to note 2(g) – Impairment of non-financial assets .
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f)

Non-financial assets (continued)
Revaluations of non-current physical assets
Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued in accordance with FRD 103F Non
Current Physical Assets issued by the Minister for Finance. This revaluation process normally occurs every
five years, based upon the asset’s Government Purpose Classification, but may occur more frequently if
fair value assessments indicate material changes in value. Revaluation increases or decreases arise from
differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Revaluation increases are credited directly to equity in the physical asset revaluation surplus, except
to the extent that an increase reverses a revaluation decrease in respect of that class of property, plant
and equipment previously recognised as an expense (other economic flows) in the net result, the
increase is recognised as income (other economic flows) in determining the net result.
Revaluation decreases are recognised immediately as expenses (other economic flows) in the net results,
except to the extent that a credit balance exists in the physical asset revaluation surplus in respect of
the same class of property, plant and equipment in which case they are debited to the physical asset
revaluation surplus.
Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property, plant and
equipment are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in
different classes.
A full revaluation of non-financial physical assets was conducted in June 2011 in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister of Finance. The useful lives and residual
values of the respective assets were adjusted to reflect the most recent assessment performed by the
Valuer-General Victoria (VGV). The next scheduled full revaluation will be conducted in 2016.
The Valuer-General provides guidance to asset valuers on the valuation rationale and appropriate level
of “Community Service Obligation” 2010–11: 70% discount to apply to the asset.

(iii) Crown land
Crown land is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after
due consideration is made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the land, public
announcements or commitments made in relation to the intended use of the land. Theoretical
opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset are not taken into account until it is virtually
certain that the restrictions will no longer apply.
The financial statements list the location and values of Crown land over which Parks Victoria is the
committee of management note 18(c). This Crown Land remains the property of the State of Victoria.
Crown Land is used for heritage and environmental conservation, recreation, leisure, tourism and
navigation.
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f)

Non-financial assets (continued)
Restrictive nature of cultural and heritage assets, Crown land and infrastructures
During the reporting period, Parks Victoria held cultural assets, heritage assets, Crown land
and infrastructures.
Such assets are deemed worthy of preservation because of the social rather than financial benefits
they provide to the community. The nature of these assets means that there are certain limitations and
restrictions imposed on their use and/or disposal.

(iv) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred
subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic
benefits will flow to Parks Victoria. Intangible assets include business systems and IT software.

g) Impairment of non-financial assets
All non-financial assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for:
• Inventories, refer note 2(f) (i).
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value
exceeds their recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the
difference is written off by charge to the Comprehensive Operating Statement except to the extent that
the write-down can be debited to the physical asset revaluation surplus account.
If there is an indication that there has been a reversal in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss or destruction of an asset, the future economic benefits arising
from the use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The
recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair
value less costs to sell.
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h) Leased assets
A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment. Leases are
classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of
the agreement to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of property, plant and
equipment are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. All of Parks Victoria’s leases are currently classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating leases
(i) Parks Victoria as lessee
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the
comprehensive operating statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the
leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised in the balance sheet.

i)

Liabilities
(i) Payables
Payables consist of:
• c ontractual payables, such as accounts payable, and unearned income including deferred income.
Accounts payable represents liabilities for goods and services provided to Parks Victoria to the end
of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when Parks Victoria becomes obliged to make future
payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services; and
• statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at amortised
cost. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not
classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised
cost, because they do not arise from a contract.
Payables are non-interest bearing and have an average credit period of 30 days.

(ii) Employee benefits
(i) Wages and salaries and sick leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting
date are measured at their nominal amounts in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date.
The nominal basis of measurement uses employee remuneration rates that the entity expects to pay
as at each reporting date and does not discount cash flows to their present value. Non-vesting sick leave
is not expected to exceed current and future sick leave entitlements, and accordingly, no liability has
been recognised.
Liabilities for wages and salaries that are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the
reporting date are measured at present value.
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i)

Liabilities (continued)
(ii) Annual leave and long service leave
Annual leave and long service leave entitlements expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised as a provision for employee benefits in the Balance Sheet at their
nominal values.
Annual leave and long service leave entitlements not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be
made by Parks Victoria in respect of services provided by employees up to reporting date. Consideration
is given to expected future employee remuneration rates, employment related on-costs and other factors
including experience of employee departures and periods of service. In the determination of annual and
long service leave entitlement liabilities, Parks Victoria use the wage inflation and discount rates released
by the Department of Treasury and Finance.
(iii) Classification of employee benefits as current and non-current liabilities
Employee benefit provisions are reported as current liabilities where Parks Victoria does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months. Consequently, the current portion of the
employee benefit provision can include both short-term benefits (those benefits expected to be settled
within 12 months of the reporting date), which are measured at nominal values, and long-term benefits
(those benefits not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date), which are
measured at present values.
Employee benefit provisions that are reported as non-current liabilities also include long-term benefits
such as non-vested long service leave (i.e. where the employee does not have a present entitlement to
the benefit) that do not qualify for recognition as a current liability, and are measured at present values.
The non-current liability for long service leave represents entitlements accrued for employees with less
than 7 years of continuous service, where Parks Victoria has the right to defer the liability.
(iv) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. Parks
Victoria recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted
to present value.
(v) Performance payments
Performance payments for Parks Victoria’s Executive Officers are based on a percentage of the annual
salary package provided under their contracts of employment. A liability is recognised and is measured
as the aggregate of the amounts accrued under the terms of the contracts at balance date. Since the
performance payments earned are paid upon completion of annual performance reviews, the total
amount is classified as a current liability.
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i)

Liabilities (continued)
(vi) Superannuation
(i) Defined accumulation plans
Contributions are made by Parks Victoria to employee superannuation funds and are charged as expenses
when incurred.
(ii) Defined benefit plans
A liability or asset in respect of defined superannuation benefit plans is recognised in the balance sheet
and is measured as the difference between the present value of employees accrued benefits at the end
of the reporting period and the net market value of the superannuation plan’s assets at that date. The
present value of benefits as accrued benefits is based on expected future payments which arise from
membership of the plans at the end of the reporting period. Consideration is given to expected future
salary levels, resignation and retirement rates. Expected future payments are discounted using rates
of Commonwealth Government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible the
estimated future cash outflows.
The amount brought to account in the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of superannuation
represents the contributions made to the superannuation plan, adjusted by the movement in the defined
benefit plan liability or asset. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) in the reporting period in which they occur.
P arks Victoria only recognises the liability for Vision Super defined benefit plans. Parks Victoria does not
recognise the defined benefit liability in respect of any other plans because the entity has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees.
Disclosure of superannuation contributions by Parks Victoria is provided in Note 29.

(iii) Provisions
P rovisions are recognised when Parks Victoria has a present obligation as a result of a past event, the
future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured
reliably.
T he amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time
value of money and risks specific to the provision.
 hen some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recognised
W
from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(iv) Deferred revenue
Deferred revenues represent the portion of reciprocal government and external grants/funding for
conditions which at the end of financial year had not been performed (see Note 2(k)).
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j)

Contributed capital
Consistent with Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Entities and FRD 119 A Transfers through Contributed Capital, appropriations for additions to the net
assets base have been designated as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature
of contributions or distributions have also been designated as contributed capital.

k) Income recognition
Amounts disclosed as income are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.
Parks Charge income is recognised when invoiced by Parks Victoria. Other income, including external
grants/funding, is recognised when earned or on receipt, depending on which ever occurs earlier.
Compensation from third parties for items of property, plant and equipment that were impaired,
lost or given up are recognised in profit or loss when the receipt of the reimbursement becomes
“virtually certain.”
Where government and external grants/funding are reciprocal, income is recognised as performance
occurs under the grant. Non-reciprocal grants are recognised as income when the grant is received or
receivable. Conditional grants may be reciprocal or non-reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.
Where government funding is reciprocal, income is recognised as performance occurs under the grant.
Non-reciprocal grants are recognised as income when control over the grant is obtained.
A deferred revenue balance is recognised when funding has been received though eligibility criteria have
not yet been met. A liability is also recognised where the entity has a present obligation to return grant
funding under the agreements and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required.

l)

Interest income
Interest income includes unwinding over time of discounts on financial assets and interest received
or receivable on bank term deposits and other investments.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield
on the financial asset.
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m)	Resources provided and received free of charge or for
nominal consideration
Contributions of resources including volunteer resources and assets received free of charge or for
nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value. Contributions in the form of services are only
recognised at their fair value. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value
can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not donated.

n) Grants and other payments
Grants and other payments to third parties are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which
they are paid or payable. They include transactions such as: grants, subsidies, other transfer payments
made to State owned agencies, local government, non-government schools and community groups.

o) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation is applied to completed fixed assets including buildings and building improvements, piers,
jetties and river improvements, land improvements and plant, equipment, machinery, and vehicles. Land
and antiques are not depreciated.
Works in Progress is valued at cost and depreciation commences on completion of the works.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to systematically write off the cost or revalued amount
of each non-current asset over its expected useful life to the entity.
Depreciation rates are reviewed annually and, if necessary, adjusted to reflect the most recent
assessments of the useful lives and residual values of the respective assets.
Where assets have separate identifiable components that have distinct useful lives and/or residual values,
a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.
The expected useful life of each asset category is as follows:
2015
Expected Life
(Years)

2014
Expected Life
(Years)

Buildings and building improvements

5 to 100

5 to 100

Piers, jetties and river improvements

6 to 100

6 to 100

Land improvements

1 to 100

1 to 100

1 to 10

1 to 10

Asset category

Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis to systematically write off the cost or revalued amount
of each intangible asset over its expected useful life to the entity.
Amortisation rates are reviewed annually and, if necessary, adjusted to reflect the most recent
assessments of the useful lives and residual values of the respective assets.
The expected useful life of each Intangible assets category (computer software) is 10 years (2014: 10 years).
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p) Finance costs
Finance costs (mainly bank charges) are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

q) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts.
These commitments are disclosed by way of a note (refer to note 28) at their nominal value and inclusive
of the Goods and Services Tax (GST) payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides
additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects are
stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are
recognised in the balance sheet.

r)

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by
way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are
presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

s)

Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is
not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances, the GST is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables.
Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO, is
classified as operating cash flows and disclosed therein.

t)

Rounding of amounts
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless
otherwise stated. Figures in the financial statements may not equate due to rounding.
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u) Changes in accounting policies
The following new and revised Standards have been adopted in the current period with their financial
impact detailed as below.
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AASB 10 provides a new approach to determine whether an entity has control over an entity, and
therefore must present consolidated financial statements. The new approach requires the satisfaction
of all three criteria for control to exist over an entity for financial reporting purposes:
(a) The investor has power over the investee;
(b) The investor has exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
(c) The investor has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of investor’s returns.
Based on the new criteria prescribed in AASB 10, Parks Victoria has reviewed the existing arrangements
to determine if there are any additional entities that need to be consolidated into the group. Parks
Victoria has concluded that there were no additional entities that met the control criteria.
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
In accordance with AASB 11, there are two types of joint arrangements, i.e. joint operations and joint
ventures. Joint operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities of an arrangement. A joint operator accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, revenue and
expenses. Joint ventures arise where the investors have rights to the net assets of the arrangement; joint
ventures are accounted for under the equity method. Proportionate consolidation of joint ventures is no
longer permitted.
Parks Victoria has reviewed its existing contractual arrangements with other entities and concluded that
there are no existing joint arrangements.
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities prescribes the disclosure requirements for an entity’s
interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. Parks Victoria has also reviewed its current
contractual agreements with other entities to determine the nature of the arrangements.
Parks Victoria has disclosed information about its interest in other entities in Note 34.
AASB 2015–7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
The Australian Accounting Standards Board issued an amending accounting standard AASB 2015–7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value disclosures of not-for-profit public
sector entities on 13 July 2015. In accordance with FRD 7A Early adoption of authoritative accounting
pronouncements, the Minister for Finance has approved the option for Victorian not-for-profit public
sector entities to early adopt the amending accounting standard to enable them to benefit from some
limited exemption in relation to fair value disclosures for the 2014–15 reporting period. The limited
exemption is available to those entities whose assets are held primarily for their current service potential
rather than to generate net cash inflows.
Parks Victoria meets the criteria specified in AASB 2015–7 to benefit from the reduced disclosure
requirements, so it has chosen to early adopt the amendments to Fair Value disclosure of not-for-profitpublic sector entities. Parks Victoria has applied the reduced disclosure requirements to note 18(f) & 18(g).
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v) New accounting standards and interpretations
Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2015 reporting period.
Parks Victoria assesses the impact of these new standards, their applicability and early adoption,
where applicable.
As at 30 June 2015, the applicable standards and interpretations (applicable to Parks Victoria) had been
issued but were not mandatory for the financial year ending 30 June 2015. Parks Victoria has not early
adopted these standards.

Standard/Interpretation

Summary

Applicable
for annual
reporting periods
beginning on

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires
an entity to recognise revenue when the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring a promised good or service
to a customer.

01 Jan 2017
(Exposure Draft
263 – potential
deferral to 01 Jan
2018)

The changes in revenue recognition
requirements in AASB 15 may result
in changes to the timing and amount
of revenue recorded in the financial
statements. The Standard will also require
additional disclosures on service revenue
and contract modifications. Parks Victoria
is still assessing the impact of this standard.

AASB 2014–1 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
[Part E Financial Instruments] (AASB
116 & AASB 138)

Amends various AASs to reflect the
AASB's decision to defer the mandatory
application date of AASB 9 to annual
reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018 as a consequence of
Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to
amend reduced disclosure requirements.

01 Jan 2018

This amending standard will defer the
application period of AASB 9 to the
2018–19 reporting period in accordance
with the transition requirements.

AASB 2014–4 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible
Assets to:

01 Jan 2016

The assessment has indicated that there is
no expected impact as the revenue-based
method is not used for depreciation and
amortisation.

01 Jan 2016

The amending standard will result in
extended disclosures on the entity's
responsible persons and executive officer
disclosures. management personnel
(KMP), and the related party transactions.

– establish the principle for the basis of
depreciation and amortisation as being
the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits
of an asset;

Impact on Parks Victoria's
financial statements

– prohibit the use of revenue based
methods to calculate the depreciation
or amortisation of an asset, tangible or
intangible, because revenue generally
reflects the pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating the
business, rather than the consumption
through the use of the asset.
AASB 2015–6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards –
Extending Related Party Disclosures
to not-for-profit public sector
entities [AASB 10, AASB 124
& AASB 1049]

The Amendments extend the scope
of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures
to not-for-profit public sector entities.
A guidance has been included to assist
the application of the Standard by
not-for-profit public sector entities.
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v) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)
In addition to the new standards and amendments above, the AASB has issued a list of other amending
standards that are not effective for the 2014–15 reporting period (as listed below). In general, these
applicable standards include editorial and references changes that are expected to have insignificant
impacts on public sector reporting.
AASB 2010–7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010).
AASB 2013–9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality
and Financial Instruments.
AASB 2014–5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15.
AASB 2014–7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014).
AASB 2014–8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014)
– Application of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)].
AASB 2015–2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosure Initiative: Amendments
to AASB 101 [AASB 7, AASB 101, AASB 134 & AASB 1049].
AASB 2015–3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB
1031 Materiality.
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

84,323

81,965

–

5,000

84,323

86,965

3 Parks and reserves trust funding
Parks charges
Additional funding from parks and reserves trust
Total parks and reserves trust funding

The parks and reserves trust funding is a charge levied on commercial and domestic properties
throughout the Melbourne and metropolitan area. Parks Victoria receives approximately
59% (59% 2013–14) of these trust funds annually. This funding is then invested into the
management and control of parks and waterways within the metropolitan area for the purposes
of conservation, recreation, leisure, tourism and navigation.

4 Government funding
48,234

55,992

Parks Victoria Base Review Funding

National / state parks and reserves funding

6,419

6,067

Government grants for special projects

6,565

8,489

733

714

Program Initiatives (including tracks and trails and Good Neighbour programs)
Major works funding provided by the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning (DELWP)

3,494

3,731

Major works funding provided by the Department of Economic Development, Jobs,
Transport and Resources (DEDJTR)

11,328

21,841

Total government funding

76,773

96,834

Interest on bank deposits and other financial assets

3,279

3,460

Total interest

3,279

3,460

Australian Grand Prix Corporation (AGPC) assets transferred from the Department of Economic
Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources (DEDJTR)

262

668

Total fair value of assets received free of charge

262

668

Insurance claims

2,269

3,734

Total insurance claims

2,269

3,734

5 Interest
Interest from financial assets categorised as cash and deposits and other financial assets:

6	Fair value of assets received free
of charge

7 Insurance claims
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Accommodation / camping fees

8,531

6,405

Funding sponsored by external parties

1,022

1,223

Rent, leases and licences

7,337

6,804

External sales

3,196

2,952

447

445

8 Other income

Berthing / mooring fees
Cave tour fees

1,087

972

Fire suppression costs, recovered from DELWP (note 9)

8,481

10,665

Other

6,277

4,583

36,378

34,049

83,436

82,256

Fire suppression costs (note 8)

8,481

10,665

Superannuation – defined and accumulation plans**

7,770

6,483

Payroll Tax

4,344

4,372

Total other income

9 Employee benefits expenses
Salaries, wages, termination benefits, annual leave and long service leave*

Fringe Benefits Tax

420

550

1,714

1,508

106,165

105,834

Land improvements

2,706

2,751

Buildings and building improvements

3,612

3,549

Piers, jetties and river improvements

4,989

4,480

Other on-costs
Total employee benefits
* The figure includes 3% increase in salaries and wages from 1 March 2015, arising from the
binding Workplace Determination which Parks Victoria and unions entered into in February 2013.
** Parks Victoria’s contributions, in respect of its employees (including salary sacrifice) refer note 29

10 Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation

Plant and equipment
Total depreciation

192

298

11,499

11,078

791

751

Amortisation
Intangibles
Total amortisation

791

751

12,290

11,829

Operational services and major works

43,132

53,294

Other external services

24,820

24,541

Total contracts and external services

67,952

77,835

Total depreciation and amortisation

11 Contracts and external services
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Materials

4,689

5,795

Transport

6,042

6,206

12 Other operating expenses
11,334

10,936

Payments for works sponsored by external parties

Insurance premiums

695

1,092

Other

343

723

23,103

24,752

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

(399)

(13)

Total net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

(399)

(13)

Provision for doubtful debts

(28)

(136)

Reversal of unused provision

Total other operating expenses

13	Other economic flows included
in net result
a) Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets

b) Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments
–

119

Interest income arising from advances from government
– Greener government building program

514

–

Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments

486

(17)

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability due to changes
in the bond interest rates

(1,658)

(159)

Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

(1,658)

(159)

Total other economic flows included in net result

(1,571)

(189)

Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of superannuation defined benefit plans

(280)

898

Total other economic flows – other comprehensive income

(280)

898

c) Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows

	Other economic flows
– other comprehensive income
d) Items that will not be reclassified to net result

14 Cash and deposits
Cash and deposits

25,956

84,731

Total cash and deposits – current

25,956

84,731

a) Risk exposure
Park Victoria’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 35(f). The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of cash and
deposits and other financial assets mentioned in note 35(d) .
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2015
Current
$’000

2014

NonCurrent
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total
$’000

15 Receivables
Debtors

8,346

–

8,346

16,637

–

16,637

Provision for doubtful debts

(432)

–

(432)

(421)

–

(421)

Other receivables
Total receivables

–

55

55

–

66

66

7,914

55

7,969

16,216

66

16,282

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

(421)

(500)

a) Movement in the provision for
doubtful debts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result
Increase in provision recognised in the net result
Reversal of provision written off during the year as uncollectible

–

119

(28)

(136)

17

96

(432)

(421)

Australian dollars term deposit > 3 months

55,000

–

Total other financial assets – current

55,000

–

Balance at the end of the year

b) Aging analysis of
contractual receivables
Refer to table under note 35(d) for the ageing analysis
of receivables (except statutory receivables).

c) Nature and extent of risk arising from
contractual receivables
Refer to note 35(d) for the nature and extent of risks arising
from contractual receivables.

16 Other financial assets
Investments

a) Risk exposure
Park Victoria’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note
35(f). The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of cash and
deposits and other financial assets mentioned in note 35(d) .

17 Inventories
Stock on Hand (at lower of cost & net realisable value)

180

193

Total Inventories

180

193
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2015
$’000

2014 (i)
$’000

2013 (i)
$’000

1,650,865

1,650,439

1,641,827

(9,399)

(6,693)

(3,942)

1,641,466

1,643,746

1,637,885

84,079

83,993

82,950

(14,589)

(10,978)

(7,472)

69,490

73,015

75,478

7,900

7,899

7,720

(7,357)

(7,165)

(6,868)

543

734

852

18 Property, plant and equipment
a) Classification by public safety and
environment-carrying amounts
Crown land, land and land improvements
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value – Crown land, land, and land improvements

Buildings and building improvements
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value – Buildings and building improvements

Plant and equipment
At fair value
Accumulated depreciation
Net book value – Plant and equipment

Piers and jetties and river improvements
At fair value

100,054

98,912

96,544

Accumulated depreciation

(17,128)

(12,248)

(7,767)

82,926

86,664

88,777

Net book value – Piers, jetties and river improvements

Antiques and artworks
At fair value

3,704

1,278

1,278

Closing balance – Antiques and artworks

3,704

1,278

1,278

Works in progress
At cost

27,092

15,064

12,201

Closing balance – Works in progress

27,092

15,064

12,201

1,825,221

1,820,501

1,816,471

Net carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
(i) Refer to Note 39 Prior Period Adjustments for details.
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
b) Classification by public safety and environment – carrying amounts (i)
Crown land, land
& land improvements

Buildings
and building
improvements

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

1,643,746

1,637,885

73,015

75,479

Additions

427

10,350

96

1,098

Disposals

(1)

–

(9)

(13)

Opening balance

Net revaluation increments/decrements
Depreciation expense

–

–

–

–

(2,706)

(2,751)

(3,612)

(3,549)

Asset transfer out of assets under construction

–

–

–

–

Machinery of government asset transfer out

–

(1,738)

–

–

1,641,466

1,643,746

69,490

73,015

Closing balance
(i) Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.

Crown land, land and land improvements
Fair value assessments based on the indices supplied by the Valuer-General Victoria have been performed for all classes of assets
within this purpose group. Management has determined that movements were not material (less than or equal to 10 per cent)
to record an interim fair value assessment increment. The next scheduled full revaluation for this purpose group will be conducted
in 2016.
Buildings and improvements, piers, jetties and river improvements
Fair value assessments based on the indices supplied by the Valuer-General Victoria have been performed for all classes
of assets within this purpose group. Management has determined that movements were not material (less than or equal
to 10 per cent) to record an interim fair value assessment increment. The next scheduled full revaluation for this purpose
group will be conducted in 2016.
Plant, equipment, machinery & vehicles
Plant and equipment are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis
to systematically write-off the cost of each asset over its expected useful life to the entity.
Antiques
For and on behalf of the office of the Valuer-General Victoria, the valuers for Colliers International Consultancy and Valuation Pty Ltd,
one of a government approved valuer, the other a member of the Australian Property Institute of Certified Practising Valuers,
determined that the most appropriate methodology for the revaluation of Antiques at fair value, was to assess the dollar value,
with reference to the active and liquid antiques’ auction market, having regard to the highest and best use of the asset, for which
market participants would be prepared to pay. These assets were revalued during a systematic three-year progressive revaluation
process, conducted over the financial years ended 30 June 2003 to 30 June 2005.
The William Ricketts Sanctuary is located in the Dandenong Ranges Gardens and contains in-ground aboriginal sculptures created
by the late William Ricketts. The assets are of cultural and heritage significance. A valuation of these assets done in the past was
not able to determine the fair value of the sculptures.
A physical revaluation of the sculptures located at William Ricketts was performed by the VGV appointed antique valuer Dominion
Group for the financial year ending 30 June 2015. For sculptures, valuation of the assets is determined by a comparison to similar
examples of the sculptures work in existence throughout Australia and research on prices paid for similar examples offered at
auction or through art galleries in recent years.
Based on the desktop valuation performed by the Dominion Group in the current year, fair value of the antiques held at Werribee
Mansion is not expected to have moved materially since the full valuation performed in financial year 2010–2011. As such, Parks
Victoria has not performed the physical revaluation of the entire class.
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Plant, equipment,
machinery & vehicles

Piers, jetties and river
improvements

Antiques

Works in progress

Total

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

734

853

86,664

88,776

1,278

1,278

15,064

14,853

1,820,501

1,819,124

1

179

1,705

2,368

–

–

14,666

6,601

16,896

20,596

–

–

(454)

–

–

–

–

–

(465)

(13)

–

–

–

–

2,426

–

–

–

2,426

–

(192)

(298)

(4,989)

(4,480)

–

–

–

–

(11,499)

(11,078)

–

–

–

–

–

–

(2,638)

(6,390)

(2,638)

(6,390)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

543

734

82,926

86,664

3,704

1,278

27,092

15,064

(1,738)
1,825,221

1,820,501
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
c) Crown land, land and land improvements at fair value, where Parks Victoria
is a Committee of Management
2015

2014

2015 Area
(Hectares)

2015
$’000

2014 Area
(Hectares)

2014
$’000

Albert Park

228

859,385

228

859,385

Bays assets

2,512

62,244

2,512

62,244

260

390

260

390

Crown land
Location

Buchan Caves Reserve

79

9,480

79

9,480

Dandenong Police Paddocks

Coolart

499

164,670

499

164,670

Dandenong Ranges Gardens

139

1,360

139

1,360

6

3,420

6

3,420

Dandenong Valley
Daylesford
Devilbend Reservoir
Eildon Water Reserve

1

1,056

1

1,056

1,005

39,990

1,005

39,990

533

1,280

533

1,280

Happy Valley

16

29

16

29

Herring Island

3

9,600

3

9,600

Hopkins River
Lighthouse Reserves
Lower Homebush Reserve

42

261

42

261

329

2,170

329

2,170

1

1

1

1

22

6,090

22

6,090

Mt Dandenong Observatory Reserve

72

2,160

72

2,160

Olinda Golf Course

34

510

34

510

Maribyrnong Valley

Peach Tree Creek
Plenty Gorge
Point Cook / Cheetham
Point Gellibrand Heritage Park

4

60

4

60

222

9,484

222

9,484

4

720

4

720

17

27,967

17

27,967

Port Campbell

1

73

1

73

Princes Wharf

1

10

1

10

Queenscliff

3

1,800

3

1,800

Rosebud depot

1

600

1

600

Sailors Falls

1

1

1

1

San Remo

1

450

1

450

Sandringham Boat Harbour

8

5,180

8

5,180

Serendip Sanctuary

227

1,670

227

1,670

Vaughan Springs

100

180

100

180

Werribee Park

130

15,600

130

15,600

36

28,467

36

28,467

Westgate
Williamstown

148

13,151

148

13,151

Yarra Bend Park

260

210,600

260

210,600

Yarra Valley

139

111,010

139

111,010

You Yangs

1,960

5,880

1,960

5,880

Total crown land at fair value

9,044

1,596,999

9,044

1,596,999
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
c) Crown land, land and land improvements at fair value, where Parks Victoria
is a Committee of Management (continued)
2015
$’000

Land and land improvements
Total land and land improvements at fair value
Total Crown land, land and land improvements

2014
$’000

44,467

46,747

1,641,466

1,643,746

d) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2015
Carrying
amount as at
30 Jun 2015
$’000

Fair value measurement
at end of reporting period using:
Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Specialised land at fair value
Crown land, land and land improvements
Total of land at fair value

1,641,466

–

–

1,641,466

1,641,466

–

–

1,641,466

69,490

–

–

69,490

69,490

–

–

69,490

543

–

–

543

543

–

–

543

77,348

–

–

77,348

77,348

–

–

77,348

Specialised building at fair value
Buildings and building improvements
Total of building at fair value

Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles at fair value
Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles
Total of plant, equipment, machinery
and vehicles at fair value

Infrastructure at fair value
Piers, jetties
Total of infrastructure at fair value

Infrastructure at fair value
River improvements

5,578

–

–

5,578

Total of infrastructure at fair value

5,578

–

–

5,578

Antique assets at fair value
Antiques and artworks
Total of cultural assets at fair value
Grand total

3,704

–

3,704

–

3,704

–

3,704

–

1,798,129

–

3,704

1,794,425
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
d) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2015 (continued)
Carrying
amount as at
30 Jun 2014
$’000

Fair value measurement
at end of reporting period using:
Level 1
$’000

Level 2
$’000

Level 3
$’000

Specialised land at fair value
Crown land, land and land improvements
Total of land at fair value

1,643,746

–

–

1,643,746

1,643,746

–

–

1,643,746

Specialised building at fair value
Buildings and building improvements
Total of building at fair value

73,015

–

–

73,015

73,015

–

–

73,015

734

–

–

734

734

–

–

734

80,718

–

–

80,718

80,718

–

–

80,718

5,946

–

–

5,946

5,946

–

–

5,946

Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles at fair value
Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles
Total of plant, equipment, machinery
and vehicles at fair value

Infrastructure at fair value
Piers, jetties
Total of infrastructure at fair value

Infrastructure at fair value
River improvements
Total of infrastructure at fair value

Antique assets at fair value
Antiques and artworks
Total of cultural assets at fair value
Grand total

1,278

–

–

1,278

1,278

–

–

1,278

1,805,437

–

–

1,805,437

Parks Victoria, according to the accounting policy, determines whether transfers have occurred between the levels in the hierarchy
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement at the end of the reporting period.
During the year antiques were transferred out of level 3 to level 2. This was a direct result of the adjustment to significant
unobservable input values that are directly or indirectly observable based on valuation performed during the year by the valuer
as outlined below.
A desktop revaluation of the antiques at Werribee Park was performed by the antique valuer for the financial year ending 30 June
2015. A physical revaluation of the sculptures at William Ricketts was performed by the Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) for the
financial year ending 30 June 2015. For sculptures, valuation of the assets is determined by a comparison to similar examples
of the sculptures work in existence throughout Australia and research on prices paid for similar examples offered at auction
or through art galleries in recent years.
There have been no other transfers between levels during the year.
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Total of specialised land and total of specialised buildings
The last scheduled revaluations were conducted during the year ending 30th June 2011. Subsequent, annual fair value assessment
of the assets showed the compounded movement in the fair value of the assets (land and buildings) is not material, so no change
to the carrying of the asset is required.
The independent valuation (fair value) of specialised land was determined by the Valuer-General Victoria (VGV). The valuation
of the land was determined by analysing comparable sales and allowing for size, topography, location and other relevant factors.
The valuation of the land was adjusted for Community Service Obligation (CSO) which accounts for any legal or constrictive
restrictions imposed on the assets such as current zoning, covenants, use, public announcements or commitments made in relation
to the intended use of the land. The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated
with an asset to the extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant
unobservable inputs, specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets.
The value of specialised buildings was determined by the VGV after deducting allowances for any physical deterioration and
functional and economic obsolescence already occurred or expired (depreciated replacement cost). As depreciation adjustments
are considered as significant, unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings are classified at Level 3 fair value measurements.
Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles
Plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles are valued using the depreciated replacement cost method. This cost represents
the replacement cost of the plant, equipment, machinery and vehicles after applying depreciation rates on a useful life basis.
Replacement costs relate to costs to replace the current service capacity of the asset.
As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant, unobservable inputs in nature, these assets are classified at Level 3
fair value measurements. No revaluations were performed for the financial period ending 30th June 2015.
Infrastructure
Infrastructure comprising of piers,jetties and river improvements. Infrastructures are valued using the depreciated replacement cost
method. This cost generally represents the replacement cost of piers, jetties and river improvements after applying depreciation
rates on a useful life basis. The value of infrastructure (piers, jetties, river improvements) was determined by the VGV after deducting
allowances for any physical deterioration and functional and economic obsolescence already occurred or expired (depreciated
replacement cost). As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant, unobservable inputs in nature, specialised buildings
are classified at Level 3 fair value measurements.
Antique assets
For artwork, valuation of the assets is determined by a comparison to similar examples of the artists work in existence throughout
Australia and research on prices paid for similar examples offered at auction or through art galleries in recent years. No revaluation
was performed for artwork for the financial period ending 30 June 2015.
For sculptures, valuation of the assets is determined by a comparison to similar examples of the sculptures work in existence
throughout Australia and research on prices paid for similar examples offered at auction or through art galleries in recent years.
A physical revaluation of the sculptures was performed by the VGV for the financial period ending 30 June 2015.
Antique assets are classified for financial year ending at level 2 (2013/14: level 3) fair value measurements as their values are based
on significant inputs and market values that are directly or indirectly observable.
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
e) Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

Piers, Jetties
and River
Improvements

Antique –
Paintings,
Furniture,
Silverware
& Ceramics

Total Level
3 Assets

Specialised
Land

Specialised
Buildings

Plant,
Equipment,
Machinery
and
Vehicles

1,643,746

73,015

734

86,664

1,278

1,805,437

426

87

1

1,251

–

1,765

–

–

–

–

(1,278)

(1,278)

(2,706)

(3,612)

(192)

(4,989)

–

(11,499)

2015
Opening balance
Purchases (sales)
Transfers in (out) of Level 3
Gains or losses recognised
in net results
Depreciation expense

–

–

–

–

–

–

Subtotal

Impairment loss

1,641,466

69,490

543

82,926

–

1,794,425

Closing balance

1,641,466

69,490

543

82,926

–

1,794,425

1,637,885

75,478

853

88,776

1,278

1,804,270

8,612

1,086

179

2,368

–

12,245

–

–

–

–

–

–

(2,751)

(3,549)

(298)

(4,480)

–

(11,078)

–

–

–

–

–

–

Subtotal

1,643,746

73,015

734

86,664

1,278

1,805,437

Closing balance

1,643,746

73,015

734

86,664

1,278

1,805,437

2014
Opening balance
Purchases (sales)
Transfers in (out) of Level 3
Gains or losses recognised
in net results
Depreciation expense
Impairment loss
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18 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
f) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations
as at 30 June 2015
Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Specialised Land

Market approach

Community service Obligation (CSO) adjustment

Specialised Buildings

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per building and
(2) Useful life of buildings

Plant, Equipment, Machinery and Vehicles

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per unit and
(2) Useful life of plant and equipment

Piers/Jetties

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per pier/jetty and
(2) Useful life of piers, jetties

River Improvements

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per river improvement and
(2) Useful life of river improvements

g) Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations
as at 30 June 2014
Valuation technique

Significant unobservable inputs

Specialised Land

Market approach

Community service Obligation (CSO) adjustment

Specialised Buildings

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per unit and
(2) Useful life of buildings

Plant, Equipment, Machinery and Vehicles

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per unit and
(2) Useful life of plant and equipment

Piers and Jetties

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per pier/jetty and
(2) Useful life of piers, jetties

River Improvements

Depreciated replacement cost

(1) Cost per river improvement and
(2) Useful life of river improvements

Artwork – Paintings

Market approach

Cost per unit

Artwork – Furniture

Market approach

Cost per unit

Artwork – Silver & Ceramic

Market approach

Cost per unit
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

7,510

7,510

696

–

8,206

7,510

(3,437)

(2,686)

(791)

(751)

(4,228)

(3,437)

3,978

4,073

Prepayments

780

413

Total other non-financial assets

780

413

15,220

18,381

2,363

2,877

15

–

17,598

21,258

19 Intangible assets
Computer software
Gross carrying amount
Gross carrying amount opening balance
Additions – internal development
Closing balance
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening balance
Amortisation expense
Closing balance
Net book value at the end of financial year

20 Other non-financial assets

21 Payables
Unsecured creditors and accruals
Advances from (DEWLP – Greener Government Building Program)
Other payables
Total payables

(a) Maturity analysis of contractual payables
Refer to table under note 35(e) for the maturity analysis of contractual payables.

(b) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual payables
Refer to note 35(e) for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables.
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2015

2014

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total
$’000

Current
$’000

NonCurrent
$’000

Total
$’000

Annual Leave expected to be taken within the next 12 months

4,874

–

4,874

4,587

–

4,587

Annual Leave expected to be taken after the next 12 months

1,676

–

1,676

1,592

–

1,592

Long service leave – unconditional and expected to be taken
within 12 months

2,053

–

2,053

1,588

–

1,588

19,589

–

19,589

18,664

–

18,664

–

1,964

1,964

–

1,943

1,943

28,192

1,964

30,156

26,431

1,943

28,374

1,156

–

1,156

1,094

–

1,094

Long service leave – unconditional and expected to be taken
within 12 months

378

–

378

293

–

293

Long service leave – unconditional and expected to be taken
after 12 months

3,602

–

3,602

3,443

–

3,443

–

361

361

–

358

358

22 Provisions
Employee benefits

Long service leave – unconditional and expected to be taken after
12 months
Employee benefits – long service leave
Total employee benefits

Employee benefit On-costs
Annual Leave entitlements

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs – long service leave
Total employee related On-costs
Total employee benefits and related on-costs

5,136

361

5,497

4,830

358

5,188

33,328

2,325

35,653

31,261

2,301

33,562
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2015
$’000

2014 (i)
$’000

2013 (i)
$’000

23 Deferred revenue
Deferred income – Current

–

1,600

–

Deferred income – Non-current

–

–

–

Total deferred revenue

–

1,600

–

1,133,292

1,133,642

(4)

(318)

(13)

(32)

(i) Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.

24 Physical asset revaluation
surplus
Movements:
Opening balance
Revaluation & disposal of Parks Victoria assets:
Disposal of crown land and land improvements
Disposal of buildings and building improvements
Disposal of piers, jetties and river improvements
Revaluation of antiques
Net revaluation increment/(decrement) on Parks Victoria assets
Total physical asset revaluation surplus

(22)

–

2,426

–

2,387

(350)

1,135,679

1,133,292

636,902

632,961

25 Contributed capital
Opening balance

611,580

Crown Land assets transferred from DELWP

–

5,679

–

Crown Land assets transferred to DELWP

–

(1,738)

–

2,335

–

16,705

(1,248)

–

–

Addition to net asset base from DELWP
Redemption of capital to DELWP
Albert park assets transferred from DPCD

–

–

4,676

Net movement in contributed capital

1,087

3,941

21,381

637,989

636,902

632,961

Total contributed capital
(i) Refer to note 39 Prior period adjustments for details.
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

26 Cash flow information
a) Reconciliation of cash and deposits
Cash and deposits

25,956

84,731

Investments and other financial assets

55,000

–

Balance as per cash flow statement

80,956

84,731

–

5,679

(8,077)

6,169

12,290

11,829

28

17

Net assets (received) provided free of charge

(262)

(668)

Net (gain) / loss on sale of non-current assets

399

13

8,312

(5,280)

b) Non-cash financing and investing activities
Restructuring of administrative arrangements
Crown Land assets transferred from DELWP

c) Reconciliation of net results for the period to net cash flows
from operating Activities
Net results for the period
Non-cash movements:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for doubtful debts

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (increase) in trade debtors
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in superannuation defined benefit & other assets
(Decrease) / increase in other provisions

12

(17)

297

(1,191)

2,092

(3,451)

(Decrease) / increase in trade creditors

(3,658)

(3,899)

(Decrease) / increase in other operating liabilities

(1,600)

847

9,833

4,369

Total credit card facility

2,000

2,000

Total credit card facility used/(Liability)

(219)

(221)

330

330

Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities

d) Credit card and merchant facilities

Total merchant facility (daily limit)

27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
a) Contingent liabilities
A number of public liability compensation claims have been lodged with Parks Victoria. Parks Victoria has forwarded those claims
to its insurer Victorian Managed Insurance Authority (VMIA) to be assessed. Parks Victoria’s public liability exposure towards these
compensation claims is limited to its normal insurance excess – $5,000 per claim.

b) Contingent assets
Parks Victoria has lodged insurance claims for compensation for the reinstatement and replacement of buildings and infrastructure,
which sustained damages due to fire, floods and storm activities, with its insurer Victorian Managed Insurance Authority (VMIA).
At 30 June 2015, Parks Victoria has $1.9m (2014: $9.8m) in claims outstanding with VMIA, that are currently being assessed.
Parks Victoria engaged the services of a contractor to deliver the reinstatement and replacement of assets following fires and
floods. A subsequent review of the contract deliverables identified an overpayment of $698k. Management has assessed this
amount to be recoverable and is working with an external consultant to recover it.
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

994

2,725

–

–

28 Commitments
a) Capital commitments
Value of commitments for capital expenditure at 30 June 2015 for the supply of works, services
and materials not provided for in the financial statements:

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

–

–

Total capital commitments (inclusive of GST)

Later than five years

994

2,725

Less GST recoverable from Australian Taxation Office

(90)

(247)

Total capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

904

2,478

b) Lease commitments
Operating leases relate to buildings, motor vehicles, computers and property and plant
equipment with lease terms of between three to ten years, with an option to extend for a
further three years.
Total expenditure contracted for at balance date but not provided for in the financial statements
in relation to non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

Not later than one year

10,364

10,000

Later than one year but not later than five years

19,826

16,998

Later than five years
Total non-cancellable operating leases (inclusive of GST)

784

2,846

30,974

29,844

Less GST recoverable from Australian Taxation Office

(2,816)

(2,713)

Total non-cancellable operating leases (exclusive of GST)

28,158

27,131

Type of
scheme

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Vision Super

Defined

1,050

1,007

Other

Defined

1,504

1,515

Accumulation

3,088

2,865

Vic Super

Accumulation

1,995

1,805

Other

Accumulation

2,290

1,861

9,927

9,053

29 Superannuation
Parks Victoria contributes, in respect of its employees (including salary sacrifice), to the
superannuation schemes as follows:

Scheme
Defined benefit plans:

Accumulation plans:
Vision Super

Total contributions to all funds

Employees engaged from 1 January 1994 are entitled to benefits under accumulation funds. Employees have the opportunity to
make personal contributions to the funds at a self-nominated rate or amount. The minimum employer contribution to the fund,
pursuant to the Superannuation Guarantee Charge was 9.50 per cent in 2014/15 (2013/14: 9.25 per cent).
As at the reporting date, there were no outstanding contributions payable to the above funds. However there is a separate
provision made in regards to defined benefits plan (refer note 30(c)).
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30 Defined superannuation benefit
Parks Victoria makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of employees engaged up until the 31st December 1993
to the Vision Super superannuation fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined
benefit, which are funded differently. The defined benefit section provides lump sum benefits based on years of service and
final average salary.
Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised in the Comprehensive Operating Statement when they are made or due.
Employees contribute at rates between 0 to 7.5 per cent of their superannuation salary. Parks Victoria contributes to the fund
based on its commitments under the Employee Participation Agreement and Contribution Policy with the trustee of the fund.
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

a) Reconciliation of the present value of the defined
benefit obligation
32,084

33,825

Current service cost

Balance at the beginning of the year

898

934

Plan expenses

292

300

1,120

1,232

319

337

Interest cost
Contributions by plan participants
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss

1,915

1,582

Benefits paid

(2,445)

(6,126)

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year

34,183

32,084

32,882

30,886

2,756

3,633

Employer contributions

806

4,152

Contributions by plan participants

319

337

b) Reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets
Balance at the beginning of the year
Return on plan assets

Benefits paid

(2,445)

(6,126)

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

34,318

32,882

c) Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognised
in the balance sheet
Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Less: fair value of plan assets
Net superannuation liability/(asset)

34,183

32,084

(34,318)

(32,882)

(135)

(798)
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30 Defined superannuation benefit (continued)
Accumulation				
Parks Victoria also made employer contributions to the Fund’s accumulated contributions category at the Superannuation Guarantee
Contribution rate of 9.50% (2013–2014: 9.25%) of members salaries. Parks Victoria’s commitment to defined contribution plans
is limited to making contributions in accordance with Parks Victoria’s minimum statutory requirements.

Funding arrangements
Parks Victoria makes employer contributions to the defined benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the
advice of the Fund’s Actuary. Parks Victoria’s funding arrangements comprise of three components which are detailed as follows:
1	Regular contributions – which are ongoing contributions needed to fund the balance of benefits for current members and
pensioners,
2	Funding calls – which are contributions in respect of Parks Victoria’s obligations for any funding shortfalls that arise; and
3	Retrenchment increments – which are additional contributions to cover the increase in liability arising from retrenchments.
Parks Victoria is also required to make additional contributions to cover the contribution tax payable on the contributions referred
to above.
Employees are also required to make member contributions to the Fund. As such assets accumulate in the Fund to meet member
benefits as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

Employer contributions
Regular contributions
On the basis of the results of the most recent actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund’s Actuary on 30 June 2015,
Parks Victoria makes employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund’s Trustee.
For the year ended 30 June 2015, this rate was 12.0% of member’s salaries.
In addition, Parks Victoria reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above
the funded resignation or retirement benefit. (The funded resignation benefit is calculated as the Vested Benefit Index (VBI)
multiplied by the benefit).
Funding calls
The Fund is required to comply with the superannuation prudential standards. Under the superannuation prudential standard SPS
160, the Fund is required to target full funding of its vested benefits. There may be circumstances where:
• a fund is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation (i.e. its (VBI) is less than 100% at the date of the
actuarial investigation); or
• a fund’s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than at the date of the actuarial investigations.
If either of the above occur, the fund has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the fund is required to put a plan in place
so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. There may be circumstances where the Australian
Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) may approve a period longer than three years.
The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.
In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, Parks Victoria is required
to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.
Shortfall amounts
The Fund’s last actuarial investigation, as at 27 February 2014, identified an unfunded liability of $2.812m. Parks Victoria provided
full funding for this shortfall during the year.
Parks Victoria has recognised an asset in the Balance Sheet in respect of its defined superannuation benefit arrangements at 30 June
2015. Where a surplus exists in the plan, Parks Victoria may be able to take advantage of it in the form of a reduction in the required
contribution rate, depending on the advice of the plan’s actuary. If a deficit exists in the plan, Parks Victoria may be required to
increase the required contribution rate, depending on the advice of the plan’s actuary consistent with the plan’s deed.
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30 Defined superannuation benefit (continued)
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

Service cost

1,217

1,271

Member contribution

(319)

(337)

d) Expense recognised in the comprehensive
operating statement

Net interest cost

–

79

292

300

1,190

1,313

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in year

280

(898)

Total superannuation expense/(income) (Note 13d)

280

(898)

Discount rate (gross of tax)

2.66% pa

3.54% pa

Expected return on assets

6.50% pa

7.50% pa

Average salary increase rate

3.00% pa

3.00% pa

Plan expense
Total superannuation expense/(income)

e) Expense recognised in the other comprehensive income

f) Fair value of plan assets
The fair value of plan assets includes no amounts relating to:
a) any of Parks Victoria's own financial instruments;
b) any property occupied by, or other assets used by, Parks Victoria.

g) Expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined by weighting the expected
long-term return for each asset class by the target allocation of assets to each asset class and
allowing for the correlations of the investment returns between asset classes. The returns
used for each asset class are net of investment tax and investment fees. An allowance for
administration expenses has also been deducted from the expected return.

h) Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date

i) Sensitivity – Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation
as at balance sheet date
The following table shows the sensitivity of each significant actuarial assumption on the Defined
Benefit Obligation as at 30 June 2015. It illustrates how the Defined Benefit Obligation would
have been affected by changes in the assumptions that were reasonably possible at that date,
by holding all other assumptions and data constant, but do not represent the best cases that
could occur.
Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation as at 30 June 2015 of:
a) Increase in the Discount Rate of 1% p.a.

(2,294)

b) Decrease in the Discount Rate of 1% p.a.

2,597

c) Increase in the Salary Increase Rate of 1% p.a.

2,300

d) Decrease in the Salary increase Rate of 1% p.a.

(2,123)
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31 Volunteer resources provided free of charge
In 2014–15 volunteers contributed in excess of 28,072 days (30,147 days 2013–14) of voluntary labour on Parks Victoria
managed land.
Volunteers including friends groups, individuals, schools, corporate volunteers and special interest groups, provided valuable
support to Parks Victoria through their voluntary participation in a range of park management projects and ongoing maintenance
across approximately 200 parks and reserves.
No estimate of the value of these resources has been included in the financial report as there is no practical way of determining
an appropriate valuation basis.
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

71

70

32 Auditor's remuneration
Amounts paid/payable to:
Victorian Auditor-General's Office for the audit of the financial statements

33	Responsible persons and executive officer disclosures
a) Responsible persons
The names of persons who were board members at any time during the financial year ended 30
June 2015 are as follows:
Andrew Fairley

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Natalie O'Brien

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Andrew Grant

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Pru Sanderson

1 July 2014 to 22 February 2015

Andrew Vizard

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Ross Passalaqua

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Dennis Cavagna

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Robert Wallis

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Deborah Cheetham

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

The name of the responsible Minister from 1 July 2014 to 03 December 2014 was Ryan Smith MP, Minister for Environment and
Climate Change. The name of the responsible Minister from 04 December 2014 to 30 June 2015 was Lisa Neville MP, Minister for
Environment, Climate Change and Water. Amounts relating to ministers are reported in the financial statements of the Department
of Premier and Cabinet.
The name of the accountable officer from 1 July 2014 to 5 June 2015 was B Jackson. The name of the accountable officer from
6 June 2015 to 30 June 2015 was C Rose.

b) Accountable Officer remuneration
Remuneration received or receivable by the Accountable Officer in connection with the management of Parks Victoria during the
reporting period was in the range:
$450,000 to $459,999 (2014–15)
$350,000 to $359,999 (2013–14)
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

204

179

Number

Number

$0 to $9,999

–

1

$10,000 to $19,999

1

1

$20,000 to $29,999

7

6

$30,000 to $39,999

1

1

c) Board members remuneration
Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Board Members from the reporting entity
was

The number of Board Members of the reporting entity included in this figure is as below:
Income of:
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33	Responsible persons and executive officer
disclosures (continued)
d) Executive officers remuneration
The number of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting
period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive
officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long-service leave payments,
redundancy payments and retirement benefits. The total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent
executive officers over the reporting period.
A number of employment contracts were completed during the year and renegotiated and a number of executives received bonus
payments during the year. These bonus payments depend on the terms of individual employment contracts. Some contracts provide
for an annual bonus payment whereas other contracts only include the payment of bonuses on the successful completion of the
full term of the contract.
Total Remuneration
2015 Number *

Base Remuneration

2014 Number 2015 Number *

2014 Number

$0 to $99,999

1

–

3

–

$100,000 to $119,999

2

–

–

–

$120,000 to $129,999

–

–

–

1

$130,000 to $139,999

–

1

1

–

$140,000 to $149,999

1

–

–

–

$150,000 to $159,999

–

–

1

–

$160,000 to $169,999

–

–

4

1

$170,000 to $179,999

1

3

3

5

$180,000 to $189,999

5

3

4

3

$190,000 to $199,999

3

3

–

1

$200,000 to $209,000

1

1

2

1

$210,000 to $219,000

3

–

–

–

$220,000 to $229,000

1

2

–

–

–

1

–

–

Total number of executives

18

14

18

12

Total annualised employee equivalent (AEE) (a)

18

14

18

12

3,201

2,640

2,879

2,129

$320,000 to $329,999

Total amount ($ '000)
Note:

(a) Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.
(b) Total Remuneration includes performance pay, payments made on termination such as long service leave, annual leave
& redundancy.
(c) Base Remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.
* This table includes those officers who’s annual remuneration exceed $100,000. Current year executive numbers include three
executive officers who departed during the period and had their entitlements paid out in accordance with their contracts.
Base remuneration of executive officers whose contracts completed was under $100,000.
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33	Responsible persons and executive officer
disclosures (continued)
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

371

325

e) Other transactions of board members and board
member-related entities
Other transactions of board members and board member-related entities conducted
at arm’s length.
People and Parks Foundation
Vic Roads

16

–

Tourism Australia

12

–

Tourism Victoria

34

–

Wannon Water

135

2

15

–

South East Water Limited

–

35

Hall & Wilcox

–

15

Federation University Australia

Melbourne Food and Wine Festival
Total

1

–

584

377

f) Payments to other personnel
During the year, Parks Victoria had no other personnel by way of contractors, charged with significant management responsibilities.

34 Interest in other entities
The People and Parks Foundation Limited was established in 2004 as a company limited by guarantee under the Corporations Act
2001. The People and Parks Foundation Limited is a registered charity with the Australian Charities and Not for Profits Commission
and lists its purpose as advancing health, advancing natural environment and purposes beneficial to the general public and other
analogous to the other charitable purposes.
Parks Victoria provides in kind support and is the main fund provider to People and Parks Foundation Limited. There are six board
members of People and Parks Foundation Limited, two of whom are also board members of Parks Victoria. Therefore Parks Victoria
is deemed to have a significant influence. Parks Victoria’s share of the profits and losses in People and Parks Foundation Limited is
Nil and its commitments are as below.
Parks Victoria are not aware of any contingent assets or liabilities relating to the People and Parks Foundation Limited.
2015
$’000

2014
$’000

–

–

220

–

–

–

Total commitments (inclusive of GST)

220

–

Less GST recoverable from Australian Tax Office

(20)

–

Total commitments (exclusive of GST)

200

–

Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

100
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35 Financial instruments
a) Financial risk management objectives
Parks Victoria’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates. Parks Victoria does not enter into
derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk.
Parks Victoria does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes
as per the Victorian Governments Borrowing and Investment Powers Act 1987 and subsequent amendments.
The policies for managing this risk is discussed in more detail below.

b) Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.
The carrying amounts of Park Victoria’s financial assets and financial liabilities by category are in Table 35.1 below.
Table 35.1: Categorisation of financial instruments
Note

Category

14

Loans and receivables (at amortised cost)

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

25,956

84,731

Financial assets
Cash and cash deposits
Receivables

15

Loans and receivables (at amortised cost)

1,628

1,463

Other financial assets

16

Investments (at fair value)

55,000

–

21

At amortised cost

17,598

21,258

Financial liabilities
Payables
Note:
(a) The amount of receivables disclosed here exclude statutory receivables (i.e. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST
input tax credit recoverable). For 2015 this was $6.3414m (2014 $14.819m).

c) Significant terms and conditions
There are no other significant terms and conditions applicable to Parks Victoria, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument, except those required by FRD 114A Financial Instruments.

d) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from the financial assets of Parks Victoria, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets. Parks Victoria’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of counter party
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the agency. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored
on a regular basis.
Credit risk associated with the agency’s financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For debtors
other than government, it is Parks Victoria’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings and to obtain sufficient
collateral or credit enhancements where appropriate.
In addition, the agency does not engage in hedging for its financial assets and mainly obtains financial assets that are on fixed
interest. The agency’s policy is to only deal with banks with high credit ratings.
Provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that Parks Victoria will not be able to collect
a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtors default payments, debts which are more than
90 days overdue and changes in debtor’s credit ratings.
Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial
statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents Parks Victoria’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of the value of any collateral obtained.
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35 Financial instruments (continued)
Table 35.2: Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past or due nor impaired
Financial
institutions
Double-A
credit rating
$’000

Government
agencies
Triple-A
credit rating
$’000

5,834

20,122

Receivables (i)

–

–

Investments and other financial assets

–

55,000

5,834

84,731

Government
agencies
Triple-B
credit rating
$’000

Other
$’000

Total
$’000

–

–

25,956

–

901

901

–

–

55,000

75,122

–

901

81,857

–

–

–

84,731

2015
Cash and deposits

Total contractual financial assets

2014
Cash and deposits
Receivables (i)

–

–

–

804

804

Investments and other financial assets

–

–

–

–

–

84,731

–

–

804

85,535

Total contractual financial assets
Note:

(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input tax
credit recoverable).
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired
Currently Parks Victoria does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial assets.
As at the reporting date, there is $432k of receivables that have been assessed as impaired.
There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and
they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The following table discloses the ageing only of financial assets that are past
due but not impaired.
Table 35.3: Ageing analysis of financial assets(a)
Past due but not impaired
Carrying
amount
$’000

Not past
due and not
impaired
$’000

Less than
1 Month
$’000

1–3 months
$’000

3 months–1
year
$’000

1–5 years
$’000

Receivables (note a)

1,628

901

215

166

–

346

Total

1,628

901

215

166

–

346

Receivables (note a)

1,463

804

259

84

–

316

Total

1,463

804

259

84

–

316

2015

2014

Note:
(a) Ageing analysis of financial assets excludes statutory receivables (e.g. amounts owing from Victorian Government and GST input
tax credit recoverable).
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35 Financial instruments (continued)
e) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when Parks Victoria is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Parks Victoria operates under the
Government fair payments policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments
within 30 days from the date of resolution. It also continuously manages risks through monitoring future cash flows and maturities
planning to ensure adequate holding of high quality liquid assets and dealing in highly liquid markets.
Parks Victoria’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk. Cash
for unexpected events is generally sourced from liquidation of available-for-sale financial investments.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for the Parks Victoria’s financial liabilities.
Table 35.4: Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial liabilities
Maturity dates
Carrying
amount
$’000

Non Interest
Bearing
$’000

Less than
1 month
$’000

1–3 months
$’000

3 months–1
year
$’000

1–5 years
$’000

5,795

5,795

3,432

–

–

2,363

2015
Amounts payable to
other government
agencies
Other payables

11,803

11,803

11,803

–

–

–

Total

17,598

17,598

15,235

–

–

2,363

5,125

5,125

2,248

–

–

2,877

2014
Amounts payable to
other government
agencies
Other payables

16,133

16,133

16,133

–

–

–

Total

21,258

21,258

18,381

–

–

2,877

f) Market risk
Parks Victoria's exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to foreign currency
risk. A sensitivity analysis has been prepared for interest rate risk, as it is deemed as a significant market risk on the return to Parks
Victoria. Objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are disclosed in the paragraphs below.
Interest rate risk
The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.
The carrying amount of financial assets that are exposed and its sensitivity to interest rates is set out in table 35.5.
Table 35.5: Interest rate market risk exposure
Interest rate risk
Net Result
$’000
Financial assets: 2015

Net Result
$’000

-50 basis points +50 basis points

Other financial assets – based on actual 2014–15 closing balance
Carrying amount $80.9m @ 30 June 2015
Financial assets: 2014

(405)

405

-50 basis points +50 basis points

Other financial assets – based on actual 2013–14 closing balance
Carrying amount $84.7m @ 30 June 2014

(423)

Parks Victoria Annual Report 2014–15

423

103

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2015

35 Financial instruments (continued)
The interest rate risk analysis has been applied on the total of $80.9m, on the estimate that the minimum interest rate decrease will
be 0.50 % and the maximum increase will be 0.50 % .
Exposure to interest rate risk is reduced as funds are held in fixed interest term deposits. The weighted average cash interest rate
earned for 2014–15 was 2.71% (2013–14 2.95%).
Foreign currency risk
Parks Victoria is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk through its payables relating to purchases of supplies and
consumables from overseas. This is because of a limited amount of purchases denominated in foreign currencies and a short time
frame between commitment and settlement.

g) Fair value
The fair values and net fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
• L evel 1 – the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices; and
• L evel 2 – the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and
• L evel 3 – the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using unobservable market inputs.
Parks Victoria considers that the carrying amount of financial instruments assets and liabilities recorded in the financial statements
to be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation
that they will be paid or received in full. These assets and liabilities are valued at level 2.
Table 35.6: Comparison between carrying amount and fair value
The carrying values and fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:
Total carrying amount
as per balance sheet

Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables

Aggregate fair value

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

2015
$’000

2014
$’000

80,956

84,731

80,956

84,731

1,628

1,463

1,628

1,463

Total financial assets

82,584

86,194

82,584

86,194

Payables

17,598

21,258

17,598

21,258

Total financial liabilities

17,598

21,258

17,598

21,258
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2015
$’000

2014
$’000

80,956

84,731

27,578

36,429

Point Nepean park establishment

5,421

6,484

Fire and flood programs (incl. insurance)

6,051

10,459

Sponsored works

5,803

7,648

Prepaid revenue – roofed accommodation and camping

1,528

1,287

773

698

47,154

63,005

17

96

36 Committed funds
Total funds (refer note 14 & 16 )
Committed cash and Investments
Government asset and initiative funding

Other liabilities
Total committed cash
These commitments are for complex projects that span greater than one financial year. Parks
Victoria receives significant funding in advance from many sources and manages its cash to
ensure its capacity to meet immediate financial commitments as they arise.
The total committed cash balance forms part of contributed capital and accumulated surplus/
(deficit).

37 Ex-gratia payments
Forgiveness or waiver of debt (i)
i) Refer to note 15(a). It represents the reversal of a provision for doubtful debts written off
during the year as uncollectible.

38 Post balance date events
Parks Victoria is unaware of any events subsequent to the reporting date that will have a material impact on its financial position
or future financial performance.
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39 Prior period adjustments
During the year ended 30 June 2015, certain funding received in prior periods from the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning (DELWP) has been adjusted in the financial statements and in accordance with AASB 108 Accounting Policies,
Estimates and Errors comparatives have been restated. The nature of these adjustments together with their impact on prior period
comparatives are summarised below.
Deferred revenue, property plant and equipment, contributed capital and accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Parks Victoria receives the majority of its funding from DELWP. Some of this funding to deliver specific and multi-year capital projects
was classified as a liability (deferred revenue) in compliance with the accounting standard AASB 118 Revenue and subsequently
recognised as income in line with the percentage of completion of the contract.
During the review of the mid-year trial balance, the Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) identified deferred revenue recognised
by Parks Victoria with no corresponding entry by DELWP. The review identified that the nature of the funding provided to Parks
Victoria was an Addition to Net Assets Base (ATNAB). In line with government policy and FRD119A, Parks Victoria have made
adjustments to recognise all capital funding provided to Parks Victoria from DELWP as a capital contribution through equity
to build assets.
The adjustments impacted deferred revenue, property, plant and equipment, contributed capital accounts and accumulated
surplus/(deficit).
For year ending 30 June 2013 the financial statements were restated as follows:
• a decrease in the deferred revenue balance of $11.099 million
• an increase in the property plant and equipment balance of $2.954 million
• a decrease in accumulated surplus/(deficit) of $2.652 million
• an increase in the contributed capital $16.705 million
For year ending 30 June 2014 the financial statements were restated as follows:
• a decrease in the deferred revenue balance of $9.656 million
• an increase in the property plant and equipment balance of $3.708 million
• a decrease in accumulated surplus/(deficit) of $3.341 million
• an increase in the contributed capital $16.705 million

Restatement due to
2013
$’000

Adjustment
$’000

Restated
1 July 2013
$’000

Deferred revenue

11,099

(11,099)

–

Total liabilities

70,389

(11,099)

59,290

Property, plant and equipment

1,813,517

2,954

1,816,471

Total non-financial assets

1,813,517

2,954

1,816,471

Net Assets

1,846,408

14,053

1,860,461

96,510

(2,652)

93,858

1,133,642

–

1,133,642

616,256

16,705

632,961

1,846,408

14,053

1,860,461

Balance sheet (extract)

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Assets Revaluation Reserves
Contributed Capital
Total equity
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39 Prior period adjustments (continued)
Restatement due to
2014
$’000

Adjustment
$’000

Restated
1 July 2014
$’000

Deferred revenue

11,256

(9,656)

1,600

Total liabilities

66,074

(9,656)

56,420

Balance sheet (extract)

Property, plant and equipment

1,816,793

3,708

1,820,501

Total non-financial assets

1,822,270

3,708

1,825,978

Net Assets

1,857,207

13,364

1,870,571

103,718

(3,341)

100,377

1,133,292

–

1,133,292

620,197

16,705

636,902

1,857,207

13,364

1,870,571

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Assets Revaluation Reserves
Contributed Capital
Total equity
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Total fee
(ex-GST)

Expenditure
2014–15

Project
“on hold”

183,500

11,700

01 Dec 13

01 Mar 15

49,093

49,093

nil

Falls to Hotham Alpine
Crossing Master Plan –
Stage 2

15 Mar 15

31 May 16

100,000

22,950

77,050

Design Flow Consulting
Pty. Ltd.

Albert Park Lake
stormwater harvesting

23 Jan 14

30 Dec 14

98,190

55,776

nil

Strategic Project
Partners

Project & Activity
Costing Models

07 Apr 15

21 May 15

118,000

118,000

nil

Strategic Project
Partners

Lease & Licensing
Implementation
Program

01 Jun 15

15 Aug 15

97,150

43,718

53,432

Maddocks

Legal Services

01 Jul 14

30 Jun 15

285,849

285,849

Norton Rose

Legal Services

01 Jul 14

30 Jun 15

82,834

82,834

Ernst & Young

Accounting Advisory
Services

01 Jul 14

30 Jun 15

54,907

54,907

Consultant

Description

Start date

End date

Hansen Partnership
Pty. Ltd.

Albert Park Master Plan

20 Nov 13

TRC Tourism

Falls to Hotham Alpine
Crossing Master Plan

McGregor Coxall
Landscape Architects

Future
expenditure

724,827
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